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FIRST ROBINSON FINANCIAL CORPORATION  

 
Dear Fellow Stockholder, 

 The Board of Directors and management would like to share with you the Annual Report of First 
Robinson Financial Corporation (the “Company”) for our fiscal year ended March 31, 2009.  Our year was 
filled with many new milestones, including our new Trust Department and our new branch office.  But 
before we get to that, here is the financial news: our net earnings decreased by $180,000, or 18.5%, to 
$791,000 from $971,000, however this was anticipated as we opened our new branch facility in Vincennes, 
Indiana and launched our Trust Department.  Both of these ventures increased our non-interest expense, but 
we believe they are important to our long-term success.  In other areas, the Company saw significant 
growth as our total assets increased by $30.6 million, or 22.9%, to $164.4 million.  We also were able to 
increase our non-interest income by $136,000, or 8.7%, which helped offset the increase in non-interest 
expense of $742,000, or 17.9%. We also experienced an increase of $258,000, or 6.5%, in net interest 
income after provision for loan losses.  Our Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, First Robinson 
Savings Bank, N.A. (the “Bank”), continue to enjoy a high level of capital as stockholders’ equity is $12.3 
million, well above the level considered “well-capitalized” by our regulators and a very low level of non-
performing assets.  In short, unlike so many banks in the U.S., we are very healthy and making money.  I 
would encourage you to read the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation” section 
herein for more information. 

 During the past fiscal year, our stock has traded between $33.25 and $36.75 per share, during most 
of the year the price averaged around $35.00 per share.  As of March 31, 2009, our market price was 
$35.00 per share.  The book value of our stock has increased by 7.2% to $28.28 per share.  In recognition 
of the Company’s continued strong performance, the Board of Directors was also pleased to increase your 
dividends, paid to stockholders of record June 2, 2009, by 6.7%, from $0.75 per share paid in June 2008, to 
a record $0.80 per share.  The Company continues to support a stock repurchase plan that allows it, within 
limitations, to repurchase our outstanding shares. The primary focus of our employees, management and 
the Board of Directors is to increase the value of our Company, while providing outstanding customer 
service and quality banking products to our customers.  

It has been an eventful year for your Company.  In January 2007, we introduced a new account 
called “Reward Checking”, which is now called “Kasasa™ Cash”.  This account offers a higher-than-
market interest rate, which can be earned by customers if they meet specific transaction-based criteria. Our 
criteria consist of a minimum of 10 check card transactions, one electronic payment or deposit and 
receiving electronic statements each statement cycle. These requirements encourage our customers to 
utilize some of our internet-based services and technology.  This account has attracted approximately 1,875 
checking account customers, 700 of which are new customers to our Bank.  Our “Kasasa Cash” accounts 
now have total deposits over $24 million.  This year we have also added “Kasasa Giving”, which allows 
customers to make a charitable donation of the interest they earn plus they can earn additional money for 
their charity by using their debit cards.  It’s our way to help our customers and our bank give back to the 
community.  We are excited to continue to grow our core deposits, which provides us with funding for our 
loans and investments and expands our customer base.   

During the past year, we were granted fiduciary powers by the Office of the Comptroller of the 
Currency and were excited to open our own trust department.  We were fortunate to employ Christine 
Hollowell as our Trust Officer.  Christine brings many years of experience and is well respected in the trust 
community.  To accommodate this new department, we have remodeled a portion of the second floor of our 
Robinson facility.  This area now serves as our wealth management area.  It has a reception area, staffed 
with a full-time receptionist/secretary.  Jason Sutfin, our PrimeVest Investment services representative and 
Mrs. Hollowell are located there and have access to a convenient conference area.  We encourage you to 
stop in and check out the new facilities and visit with either Chris or Jason depending upon your financial 
needs.   
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Management and the Board of Directors continue to look for new services and products to offer to 
our customers while also exploring ways to improve your Company.  With this in mind, we have updated 
and modernized our website.  Our website now includes the ability to open some deposit accounts online.  
Studies show that an increasing number of customers, both existing and prospective, want the ability to do 
most, if not all, of their banking online.  I invite you to go to www.frsb.net and see the revisions made to 
the website.   

Near the end of December 2008, we opened the doors to a new branch facility on Kimmel Road 
near the junction of U.S. Route 41 and Hart Street in Vincennes, Indiana.  This area has seen significant 
business development in recent years and we are excited to have this opportunity.  This allowed your 
Company to move into an area with a population that is nearly double that of our current market in 
Crawford County.  We are still committed to growing our institution in Crawford County and gaining a 
larger share of the market; however this location provides additional opportunities that are still within 40 
miles of our home office.  Plus, this location allows us to further serve existing customers who use the 
retail, medical and educational services offered in Knox County, Indiana. We have hired several local 
people to work at this facility and have named it First Vincennes Savings Bank.  To date we have opened 
almost 500 new deposit accounts totaling approximately $15 million and have originated approximately 
$10 million in loans.  We are very pleased with our first few months of operation and are excited about the 
long-term viability of this branch. 

 As you can see, we have had an exciting and challenging year and this year will be even more 
challenging.  Rapid growth and the significant increases in insurance premiums assessed by the FDIC to 
bailout troubled banks (mostly mega banks) provide us with the difficult task of maintaining the consistent 
earnings and capital ratios we have enjoyed in recent years.  However, we believe our new opportunities 
and the conservative nature of management and the board of directors will ultimately make us a stronger 
financial institution.  

  In closing, we believe we are unmatched in supporting our communities with not only monetary 
donations to a myriad of worthy organizations and causes, but just as importantly, we support our 
communities because our employees and directors actively provide hours upon hours of volunteer service. 
We are committed to being a Real Community Bank.  As our mission statement emphasizes, the focus of 
our Company is “to serve our community with integrity and pride, offering the best financial products and 
services from the friendliest hometown people, who care about customer service, while increasing 
shareholder value and remaining locally owned.” With your support, we believe we have remained true to 
that focus!   On behalf of all of us at First Robinson, we thank you for your patronage and your support as 
we look forward to the challenges and opportunities of a new year.  This IS your Company and we want 
you to have confidence and pride in it; therefore we would encourage your questions, comments and 
suggestions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Rick L. Catt 
President/CEO 
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 The following table sets forth selected consolidated financial data of First Robinson 
Financial Corporation (the “Company”) at and for the periods indicated.  In the opinion of 
management, all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring accruals) necessary for a fair 
presentation have been included.  The consolidated financial data is derived in part from, and 
should be read in conjunction with, the Financial Statements and Notes thereto presented 
elsewhere in this Annual Report. 

 At March 31, 
 2009          2008 
 (in thousands) 
Selected Financial Condition Data:   

Total assets ................................................................................  $164,419             $133,809 

Loans, held for sale ...................................................................  392 101 

Loans receivable, net .................................................................  86,365                 76,145 

Mortgage-backed securities.......................................................  40,901                 25,302 

Interest bearing deposits ............................................................  713                      264 

Federal funds sold .....................................................................  7,572                   17,363 

Investment securities .................................................................  15,024                   6,037 

Deposits .....................................................................................  140,088                 103,898 

Total borrowings .......................................................................  9,914                16,253 

Stockholders’ equity..................................................................  12,307                11,876 
 

 Year Ended at March 31, 
 2009             2008 
 (in thousands) 
Selected Operations Data:   
Total interest income .................................................................    $               7,605    $            7,309 
Total interest expense ................................................................     (3,132)     (3,139) 
Net interest income....................................................................  4,473                4,170 
Provision for loan losses............................................................          (220)          (175) 
Net interest income after provision for loan losses....................        4,253        3,995 
Fees and service charges ...........................................................  871                  885 
Net gain on sales of loans..........................................................  231                    141 
Other non-interest income .........................................................           606            546 
Total non-interest income..........................................................        1,708         1,572 
Total non-interest expense.........................................................     (4,879)              (4,137) 
Income before taxes and extraordinary item..............................  1,082               1,430 
Income tax provision .................................................................         (291)                 (459) 
Net income ................................................................................     $                  791  $              971 
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        Year Ended at March 31, 
 2009 2008   
           (in thousands) 
Selected Financial And Other Data:   
Performance Ratios:   

Return on assets (ratio of net income to average total assets)  0.55% 0.81% 
Return on stockholders’ equity (ratio of net income to average 
equity) ....................................................................................  

 
6.69 

 
 8.37 

Interest rate spread information:   
Average during period........................................................  3.04                 3.19 
End of period......................................................................  2.76 2.88 
Net interest margin(1) ..........................................................  3.35                  3.69 
Ratio of operating expense to average total assets .............  3.38                  3.43 
Ratio of average interest-earning assets to average interest-
bearing liabilities ................................................................  

 
113.21 

 
117.94 

   
Quality Ratios:   

Non-performing assets to total assets at end of period...........  0.17 0.23 
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans...............  331.36 248.72 
Allowance for loan losses to loans receivable, net.................  0.90 0.95 

   
Capital Ratios:   

Stockholders’ equity to total assets at end of period..............  7.48 8.88 
Average stockholders’ equity to average assets.....................  8.19 9.63 
   
   

Other Data:   
Number of full-service offices ...............................................  4                      3 
Number of full-time employees .............................................  52                    40 
Number of deposit accounts...................................................  12,640             12,020 
Number of loan accounts .......................................................  3,020               2,778 

   
(1) Net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL 
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

 
Forward-Looking Statements 

This document, including information incorporated by reference, contains “forward-
looking statements” (as that term is defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 
1995). These forward-looking statements may be identified by the use of such words as: 
“believe”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “plan”, “estimate”, or words of similar meaning, or 
future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “would,” “should,” “could,” or “may.”  

 
  Examples of forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, estimates or 

projections with respect to our future financial condition, results of operations or business, such 
as:  

  •   projections of revenues, income, earnings per share, capital expenditures, assets, liabilities,
dividends, capital structure, or other financial items; 

     
  •   descriptions of plans or objectives of management for future operations, products, or

services, including pending acquisition transactions; 
     
  •   forecasts of future economic performance; and 
     
  •   descriptions of assumptions underlying or relating to any of the foregoing. 
     

 By their nature, forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties. There 
are a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control, that could cause actual 
conditions, events, or results to differ significantly from those described in the forward-looking 
statements.  

 Factors which could cause or contribute to such differences include but are not limited to:  
 
  •   general business and economic conditions on both a regional and national level; 
     
  •   worldwide political and social unrest, including acts of war and terrorism; 
     
  •   increased competition in the products and services we offer and the markets in which we

conduct our business; 
     
  •   the interest rate environment; 
     
  •   fluctuations in the capital markets, which may directly or indirectly affect our asset

portfolio; 
     
  •   legislative or regulatory developments, including changes in laws concerning taxes, 

banking, securities, insurance and other aspects of the financial services industry; 
     
  •   technological changes, including the impact of the Internet; 
     
  •   monetary and fiscal policies of the U.S. Government, including policies of the U.S. 
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Treasury and the Federal Reserve Board; 
     
  •   accounting principles, policies, practices or guidelines. 
     
  •   deposit attrition, operating costs, customer loss and business disruption greater than the

Company expects; 
     
  •   the occurrence of any event, change or other circumstance that could result in the

Company’s failure to develop and implement successful capital raising and debt
restructuring plans. 

    
  Any forward-looking statements made in this report or incorporated by reference in this 

report are made as of the date of this report, and, except as required by applicable law, we assume 
no obligation to update the forward-looking statements or to update the reasons why actual results 
could differ from those projected in the forward-looking statements. You should consider these 
risks and uncertainties in evaluating forward-looking statements and you should not place undue 
reliance on these statements.  

Business Strategy  
 

Historically, the Company’s mission has been to originate loans on a profitable basis to 
the communities served. In seeking to accomplish this mission, the Board of Directors and 
management have adopted a business strategy designed (i) to maintain the Bank’s capital level in 
excess of regulatory requirements; (ii) to maintain asset quality, (iii) to maintain, and if possible, 
increase earnings; and (iv) to manage exposure to changes in interest rates. 

First Robinson Savings Bank, National Association (the “Bank”), the Company’s 
operating subsidiary, is a community-oriented, locally owned financial institution offering 
community-banking services to residents and businesses of Crawford County, Illinois and Knox 
County, Indiana, and their surrounding counties, our primary market areas.  On December 29, 
2008, the Bank opened a full-service branch on Kimmel Road near the junction of U.S. Route 41 
and Hart Street in Vincennes, Indiana. Our branch in Vincennes goes by the popular name of First 
Vincennes Savings Bank.   The Vincennes branch has allowed us to move into an area with a 
population that is nearly double that of our current market in Crawford County.  We are still 
committed to growing our institution in Crawford County and gaining a larger share of the 
market, however this location will provide additional opportunities that are still within 40 miles 
of our home office.  

 Periodically, the Board of Directors and management meet to strategically plan for the 
future.  We review and discuss both current and new products and services to determine their 
effect on our profitability and customer service. The Board of Directors approved the submission 
of an application to the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC”) for fiduciary powers 
and, on July 1, 2008, approval of fiduciary powers was received.  A Senior Trust Officer, with 
approximately 20 years experience in Trust, began employment with the Bank in July 2008 and 
we began offering trust services shortly thereafter.  The process of building Trust assets and new 
customer relationships is slow but our Trust Officer is making new contacts daily.  As of March 
31, 2009, we had $683,000 in Trust assets.  We also monitor any and all current events and 
economic trends in our local area that could materially impact the Bank’s earnings.   

The strategic plan identifies the most critical issue to our success as consistent earnings.  
Net earnings have remained relatively consistent. A positive factor in maintaining consistent 
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earnings is the Bank’s overall asset quality, which is strong.  The Bank continues to offer fixed 
rate residential real estate mortgages through programs with the Federal Home Loan Bank of 
Chicago (“FHLB”).   During the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009, we sold $19.6 million in 
fixed rate loans to the FHLB compared to $9.9 million in fixed rate loans sold in the fiscal year 
ending March 31, 2008.  The increase in sales resulted in an increase of $90,000, or 63.8%, in 
gains on loans sold when comparing the periods ended March 31, 2009 and 2008. 

 
In January 2007, we began offering “Reward Checking”. However, on May 1st, 2009, in 

response to a marketing program to promote branding, “Reward Checking” has been renamed 
Kasasa ™ Cash.   Kasasa Cash has been very successful, growing to almost 1,900 accounts with 
a total balance of approximately $24.4 million in deposits. The product offers higher-than-market 
interest rates, which can be earned by customers if they meet specific transaction-based criteria.  
Our criteria promote the use of our internet-based banking services and technology. We realize 
the risks involved with promoting internet-based transactions; however, the Company has 
installed firewalls and incorporated additional security features to mitigate the possibility of 
security data breaches.  We cannot be certain all of the Company’s systems are entirely free from 
vulnerability to attack, despite safeguards we have installed.  Additionally, we rely on and do 
business with a variety of third-party service providers, agents and vendors with respect to the 
Company’s business, data security and communications needs.  If information security is 
breached, or one of our agents or vendors breaches compliance procedures, information could be 
lost or misappropriated, resulting in financial loss or costs to us or damages to others.  These 
costs or losses could materially exceed the Company’s amount of insurance coverage which 
would adversely affect the Company’s business. 

Another factor in maintaining consistent earnings is the continued growth in our 
investment brokerage service provided to our customers through PrimeVest Financial Services.  
With the investment brokerage products offered by PrimeVest and the investment products the 
Bank offers, we are able to serve the investment needs of our customers and the community. 

 
Net earnings have remained relatively consistent for many prior years. However, earnings 

in the coming year present unique challenges given the additional staff for the Vincennes, Indiana 
branch and the Trust Department, the increase in the FDIC insurance assessments, the squeezing 
of the net interest margin from 3.69% as of March 31, 2008 to 3.35% as of March 31, 2009, and 
the overall downturn in the national economy. The Company needs to diligently monitor its 
interest rate risk, its credit risk, and all factors relating to non-interest income and expense in 
order to maintain earnings at an acceptable level.   

We continue to maintain a strong presence in the community and are pleased to be one of 
the few independent community banks in our primary market area.  To visit First Robinson 
Savings Bank on the web, go to www.frsb.net. 
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Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Insurance Coverage 

 As with all banks insured by the FDIC, the Company’s depositors are protected against 
the loss of their insured deposits by the FDIC.  The FDIC recently made two changes to the rules 
that broadened the FDIC insurance.  On October 3, 2008, the FDIC temporarily increased basic 
FDIC insurance coverage from $100,000 to $250,000 per depositor until December 31, 
2009.  Congress has extended the increased coverage until December 31, 2013.  In addition, on 
October 14, 2008, the FDIC instituted a Temporary Liquidity Guaranty Program (“TLGP”) which 
provides full deposit insurance coverage for non-interest bearing transaction deposit accounts, 
regardless of dollar amount, until December 31, 2009.  The FDIC defines a “non-interest bearing 
transaction account” as a transaction account on which the insured depository institution pays no 
interest and does not reserve the right to require advance notice of intended withdrawals.  This 
coverage is over and above the $250,000 in deposit insurance otherwise provided to a customer. 

The Company opted into the TLGP.  The additional cost of this program, assessed on a 
quarterly basis, is a 10 basis point annualized surcharge on balances in non-interest bearing 
transaction accounts that exceed $250,000.  The Company does not believe this amount will have 
a material effect on its consolidated financial statements. 

Overview 
 
 First Robinson Financial Corporation (the “Company”) is the holding company for First 
Robinson Savings Bank, National Association (the “Bank”). The Company is headquartered in 
Robinson, Illinois and currently operates three full service offices and one drive-up facility in 
Crawford County, Illinois and one full service office in Vincennes, Indiana.  The Bank’s primary 
business consists of accepting deposits from the general public and investing these funds 
primarily in loans, mortgage-backed securities and other securities. Loans consist primarily of 
loans secured by residential real estate located in the Company’s market areas, non-residential 
and agriculture real estate loans, consumer loans, loans to municipalities, commercial loans, and 
agricultural loans.   As of March 31, 2009, $62.6 million, or 69.2%, of the Bank’s total loan 
portfolio consisted of loans secured by real estate and $27.8 million, or 30.8%, of the total loan 
portfolio in non-real estate loans.  One- to four-family residential real estate loans comprised 
$43.9 million, or 48.6%, of the Bank’s total loan portfolio as of March 31, 2009.  The Bank was 
formerly a savings and loan association whose background was primarily geared to originating 
one- to four-family residential property loans.  However in recent years, the Bank has began to 
concentrate on growing non-real estate loans which tend to have higher interest rates than 
traditional residential real estate loans.  
 
 The Company’s results of operations depend primarily on net interest income, which is 
the difference between interest earned on interest-earning assets and the interest paid on interest-
bearing liabilities. Net interest income is a function of “interest rate spread,” which is the 
difference between the average yield earned on interest-earning assets and the average rate paid 
on interest-bearing liabilities. The interest rate spread is affected by regulatory, economic and 
competitive factors that influence interest rates, loan demand and deposit flows. To a lesser 
extent, the results of operations are also affected by non-interest income, non-interest expense, the 
provision for losses on loans and income tax expense. Non-interest income consists primarily of 
service charges and gains on sales of loans. The Company’s non-interest expense consists 
primarily of salaries and employee benefits, occupancy and office expenses, advertising, data 
processing expenses and the costs associated with being a publicly held company.  
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Operations are significantly affected by prevailing economic conditions, competition and 
the monetary, fiscal and regulatory policies of government agencies. The demand for and supply 
of housing, competition among lenders, the level of interest rates and the availability of funds 
influence lending activities. Deposit flows and costs of funds are influenced by prevailing market 
rates of interest, competing investments, account maturities, and the levels of personal income 
and savings in the Company’s market area.  

 
The Bank is not involved in the origination of subprime mortgage products, so we have 

not experienced any such losses in our loan portfolio.  Our investment portfolio has not been 
impacted by the current mortgage crisis, as the mortgage-backed securities held by the Company 
have all been issued by U.S. government agencies and sponsored entities.  Our local real estate 
market did not realize the significant growth in market values over the past decade as experienced 
nationally in larger metropolitan areas.  Therefore we have not seen a material decline in housing 
prices. Our asset quality is very good and our loan losses have been minimal.  Management is 
committed to continuing this trend with our conservative loan policies and underwriting.   We 
continue to service our existing borrowers and originate new loans to credit worthy borrowers in 
an effort to meet the credit needs of our community.  

The Company earned $791,000 for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009, versus 
$971,000 in the same period of 2008, a decrease of 18.5%.  Earnings were positively impacted by 
an increase $258,000, or 6.5%, in net interest income after the provision for loan losses and an 
increase of $136,000, or 8.7%, in non-interest income.  Offsetting these positive impacts was an 
increase of $742,000, or 17.9%, increase in non-interest expense. Basic earnings per share for the 
2009 fiscal year-end were $1.84 per share versus $2.16 per share for the same period of 2008.  
Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilutive impact of stock options granted under the 
stock option plan.  Diluted earnings per share for the fiscal 2009 year-end were $1.77 per share, 
versus $2.06 per share for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008.  

 
Total assets increased $30.6 million, or 22.9%, up to $164.4 million at March 31, 2009 

from $133.8 million at March 31, 2008.  Loans, net of allowance for loan losses, increased by 
$10.3 million to $86.4 million at March 31, 2009 compared to $76.1 million at March 31, 2008.  
Investments in available for sale securities increased to $55.9 million at March 31, 2009 from 
$31.3 million at March 31, 2008, a $24.6 million, or 78.5%, increase.  Total deposits increased by 
$36.2 million, or 34.8%, to $140.1 million at March 31, 2008 from $103.9 million at March 31, 
2008.    The increase in assets and the decline in earnings for the year ended March 31, 2009, 
caused a decrease in our return on assets from 0.81% at March 31, 2008 to 0.55% at March 31, 
2009.   

Recently, the Department of the Treasury announced its Capital Purchase Program, 
whereby public bank holding companies such as the Company may, with approval, sell preferred 
stock and warrants in exchange for a capital infusion that would count as Tier 1 equity.  The 
Company did not participate in this program, as it did not want the obligations and restrictions 
placed by the government on the bank holding companies that participated in the program. 
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COMPARISON OF OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 
2009 AND 2008 
 
Net Interest Income 
 

For the year ended March 31, 2009, net interest income totaled $4.5 million, an increase 
of 7.3%, or $303,000, over the year ended March 31, 2008.  The increase in net interest income is 
due to an increase of $296,000 in total interest and dividends and a $7,000 decrease in total 
interest expense.  Even though net interest income increased, net interest margin decreased by 34 
basis points from 3.69% for the year ended March 31, 2008 to 3.35% for the year ended March 
31, 2009. 

 
 A contributing factor to the 34 basis point decrease in the interest margin is the decrease 

in the ratio of average interest-earning assets to average interest-bearing liabilities from 117.94% 
for the year ended March 31, 2008 to 113.21% for the year ended March 31, 2009.  The average 
interest rate earned on interest-earning assets edged downward from 6.47% in 2008 to 5.69% in 
2009, while the average balance of interest-earning assets increased $20.7 million from $112.9 
million in 2008 to $133.6 million in 2009. The average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities 
decreased 63 basis points from 3.28% in 2008 to 2.65% in 2009. The average balance of interest-
bearing liabilities increased $22.3 million from $95.7 million in 2008 to $118.0 million in 2009. 
Overall, the interest rate spread for 2009 also decreased to 3.04% from 3.19% in 2008. 
 

Total interest income was $7.6 million for the year ended March 31, 2009, an increase of 
$296,000, or 4.0%, from $7.3 million reported in 2008. Interest income from loans decreased by 
$239,000 from $5.6 million in 2008 to $5.4 million in 2009, and investment income increased by 
$544,000 from $1.7 million in 2008 to $2.2 million in 2009.  Dividend income from Federal 
Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and Federal Reserve Bank (FRB) stocks decreased from $19,000 in 
2008 to $10,000 in 2009. 

 
The decrease in loan interest income of $239,000 from 2009 to 2008 was due to a 

decrease in the average yield on loans offset by an increase in the average balance of loans 
outstanding. The average balance in loans outstanding increased $4.6 million, or 6.1% while the 
average yield on loans receivable decreased 73 basis points from 7.43% in 2008 to 6.70% in 
2009.   We have approximately $4.0 million in loans at or below prime.  With the drop in prime 
of 200 basis points from 5.25% at March 31, 2008 to 3.25% at March 31, 2009, it results in a 
decrease of $80,000 in interest.   

Interest income from investments, including interest on deposits, increased by $544,000, 
or 32.4%, from $1.7 million in 2008 to $2.2 million in 2009. The increase was a result of an 
increase of $689,000 in interest earned on mortgage-backed securities, municipal bonds, and 
agency securities, offset by deceases of $145,000 in interest earned on federal funds sold and 
other interest-earning deposits. Average total investment securities and interest-earning deposits, 
including federal funds sold, were $52.5 million during 2009, a $16.1 million, or 44.1%, increase 
over the 2008 average of $36.4 million.  The average rate earned on investment securities for the 
year ended March 31, 2009 was 4.24% down slightly from 4.59% in 2008.  The increase in 
average investments was funded from deposits. 
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Dividends received from Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) and Federal Reserve Bank 
(“FRB”) stocks decreased by $9,000, or 47.4%, when comparing the year ended March 31, 2009 
to the year ended March 31, 2008.  The rate of return on the FRB stock remained steady at 6.0% 
when comparing March 31, 2009 to the year ended March 31, 2008.  For the year ended March 
31, 2009, we received no dividends from the FHLB Chicago as compared to $9,000 for the year 
ended March 31, 2008.  The Company can make no prediction as to if or when the FHLB will 
resume dividend payments.    

Total interest expense decreased $7,000, or 0.2% in 2009. Interest expense on deposits 
grew by $348,000, or 13.2%, from $2.6 million in 2008 to $3.0 million in 2009. Interest expense 
from other borrowings decreased by $355,000, or 71.7%, from $495,000 in 2008 to $140,000 in 
2009. 
 

Interest expense on time deposits increased by $218,000, or 13.3%, from $1.6 million for 
the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008 to $1.9 million for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009 
due to an increase in the average balance offset by a decrease in the cost of funds. The average 
balance of time deposits increased by $11.4 million, or 32.4%, from $35.1 million in 2008 to 
$46.5 million in 2009. The increase in time deposits can primarily be attributed to the increase in 
the FDIC insurance coverage up to $250,000 and the opening of our branch in Vincennes, 
Indiana.  In three months time, the Vincennes branch had approximately $10.0 million in 
certificates of deposit.    The average cost of funds on time deposits, as of March 31, 2008, was 
4.67% compared to the average cost of funds for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009, of 
4.00%, a decrease of 67 basis points.   
 

Interest expense on savings and money market accounts decreased $188,000, or 46.4%, 
from $405,000 in 2008 to $217,000 in 2009 primarily due to a decrease of 84 basis points in the 
average cost of funds and a slight decrease of $65,000, or 0.3%, in the average balance 
outstanding. The average cost of funds on savings and money market accounts was 1.81% during 
the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008 compared to an average cost of 0.97% during the March 
31, 2009 fiscal year.   
 

Interest expense on NOW accounts increased by $318,000, or 53.3%, from $597,000 in 
March 31, 2008 to $915,000 for the year ending March 31, 2009. The average balance increased 
39.7%, or $9.4 million, from an average balance of $23.8 million in 2008 to an average balance 
of $33.2 million in 2009. The average cost of funds on NOW accounts increased 25 basis points 
from 2.51% in 2008 to 2.76% in 2009.  The increase in the average balance can be attributed to 
the popularity of “Kasasa Cash”.  Kasasa pays an attractive rate of interest to customers that meet 
electronic banking requirements, such as using a check card a certain number of times throughout 
the month, using the bank’s internet banking and bill pay system, receiving a direct deposit or 
paying a direct debit through the ACH network, and agreeing to receive an electronic statement.  
This account is designed to reduce costs associated with maintaining checking accounts.  With 
the implementation of electronic statements, the bank will cut postage and printing costs.  If 
customers do not meet the requirements, they still receive a minimal rate of interest. 
 

For the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009 versus the same period of 2008, the average 
daily balance of short-term borrowings increased $1.5 million, or 10.7%, from $14.4 million to 
$16.0 million.  The average cost of funds for 2009 decreased by 255 basis points from 3.43% to 
0.88%.  The substantial decrease in the average cost of funds contributed to the decrease of 
$355,000, or 71.7%, in other borrowings interest expense from $495,000 for 2008 to $140,000 for 
2009.  The short-term borrowings are repurchase agreements with customers that are secured by 
investment securities of the Company and federal funds purchased. 
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Provision for Loan Losses 
 

The provision for loan losses for the year ended March 31, 2009 was $220,000 compared 
to $175,000 for the year ended March 31, 2008, an increase of $45,000 or 25.7%. The provision 
for both periods reflects management's analysis of the Company's loan portfolio based on the 
information which was available to the Company. Management meets on a quarterly basis to 
review the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses based on Company guidelines. Classified 
loans are reviewed by the loan officers to arrive at specific reserve levels for those loans. Once 
the specific reserve for each loan is calculated, management calculates general reserves for each 
loan category based on a combination of loss history adjusted for current national and local 
economic conditions, trends in delinquencies and charge-offs, trends in volume and term of loans, 
changes in underwriting standards, and industry conditions.  
 

The increase of $45,000 in provision is a result of the $10.2 million, or 13.4%, increase in 
loans receivable net and an increase in net charge-offs.  Charge-offs for 2009 were $195,000 
compared to $180,000 for 2008, which were partially offset by recoveries of $28,000 in 2009 
compared to recoveries of $19,000 in 2008. The charge-offs in 2009 were related to $28,000 in 
one- to four-family real estate loans, pertaining to three borrowers, $123,000 from one 
commercial non-residential real estate loan, and $44,000 in consumer and other loans.  The 
charge-offs were partially offset by $27,000 in recoveries in consumer and other loans and $1,000 
one- to four-family real estate loans.   Although the Company’s management believes that the 
allowance for loan losses is sufficient based on information currently available, there can be no 
assurances that future events, conditions, or regulatory directives will not result in adverse, loan 
classifications, increased provisions for loan losses or additional charge-offs which may adversely 
affect net income. 
 
Non-interest Income 
 

Non-interest income categories for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 are 
shown in the following table: 
 
                   March 31, 
             
         2009        2008 % Change  
Non-interest income:      (In thousands) 
 Charges and other fees on loans $143 $129 10.9% 
 Charges and fees on deposit accounts 871 885 (1.6)  
 Net gain on sale of loans 231 141 63.8 
 Net gain on sale of foreclosed assets --- 3 (100.0) 
 Net realized gain on sale of investment 2 1 (100.0) 
 Other 461 413 11.6 
 
 Total Non-interest income $1,708 $1,572 8.7% 
 

The increase in net gain on the sale of mortgage loans is a result of the increase in the 
volume of mortgage loans sold into the secondary market during the year ended March 31, 2009 
versus the same period in 2008. During fiscal year ending 2009, the Company sold $19.6 million 
in mortgages versus $9.8 million in the prior fiscal year. All loans sold into the secondary market 
during this fiscal year end were one- to four-family residential property loans. 
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Other income consists of normal recurring fee income such as commissions from 
PrimeVest Financial Services, the Company’s investment brokerage service, increases in the cash 
value of life insurance, ATM/Debit card interchange income and fees, and safe deposit box 
revenue, as well as other income that management classifies as non-recurring.  Other income 
increased $48,000 when comparing March 31, 2009 with 2008. The primary factors relating to 
the increase between the fiscal years can be attributed to a $37,000 increase in debit/ATM card 
transaction fees, and a $14,000 increase in commissions received from the sale of annuities and 
other investments by our PrimeVest representative 

Non-interest Expense 
 

Non-interest expense categories for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009, and 2008 are 
shown in the following table: 

 
                    March 31, 
             
          2009         2008       % Change 
Non-interest expense:      (In thousands) 
 Compensation and employee benefits $2,667 $2,250  18.5% 
 Occupancy and equipment  655 624 5.0 
 Data processing  277 228 21.5 
 Audit, legal and other professional 217 195 11.3 
 Advertising 223 133 67.7 
 Telephone and postage 150 93 61.3 
 Foreclosed property expense 11 2     450.0 
 Loss on sale of foreclosed property 4 --- --- 
 Loss on disposal of fixed assets --- 4 (100.0) 
 Other 675 608 11.0 
 
 Total Non-interest expense $4,879 $4,137 17.9% 
 
                                      

Salaries and employee benefits increased $417,000 when comparing March 2009 fiscal 
year with March 2008 fiscal year. The increase is primarily the result of the increase of $312,000, 
in salaries, due to the addition of twelve full time employees.  At March 31, 2008, we had 40 full-
time employees.  At March 31, 2009, we were at 52 full-time employees.  The additional 
employees were to staff the Vincennes branch and the trust department.   

Data processing expenses increased $49,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 
compared to the same period in the prior year due to the cost of keeping up with advances in 
technology. 

Advertising expense increased $90,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 when 
compared to March 31, 2008 due to increased advertising in a new market area, Vincennes, 
Indiana.   

Telephone and postage expense increased $57,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 
2009 from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.  During August 2008, the Company signed with 
a company that would supply all lines necessary for integrated technologies, secure networking, 
and communicating with branches and ATMs.  Prior to August 2008, connectivity with branches 
was often interrupted and their computers would go down.  Since signing with the company, the 
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connectivity issues have been resolved.  The addition of phones and lines at the new branch in 
Vincennes also contributed to the increases. 

Other expense includes miscellaneous operating expenses such as office supplies, 
stationary and printing, ATM/Debit card interchange fees, check processing fees, loan expenses, 
federal deposit insurance premiums and assessments by the bank regulators among others. When 
comparing the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 to March 31, 2008, there was an increase of 
$67,000, in other expenses which can be attributed, in part, to increases in expenses related to 
federal deposit insurance and expenses associated with office supplies, stationary and printing 
costs.  The $36.2 million increase in deposits, from March 31, 2008 to March 31, 2009, the 
expiration of the FDIC insurance credit, and the increase in the regular assessment in FDIC 
insurance from 5 basis points on insured deposits to 12 basis points on insured deposits led to an 
increase in federal deposit insurance premiums of $63,000, or 630.0%.   With the announcement 
of a 5 basis point special assessment on each insured depository institution's assets minus Tier 1 
capital as of June 30, 2009, the expenses associated with FDIC insurance will continue to 
increase. 

Income Tax Expense 
 

Income tax expense decreased $168,000, or 36.6%, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 
2009, compared to the same period in 2008. The decrease can be attributed in part to decreased 
profitability.  The combined state and federal income tax expense as a percentage of income 
before income tax expense decreased to 26.9% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 
compared to 32.1% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.  

FINANCIAL CONDITION 
 

Total assets of the Company were $164.4 million as of March 31, 2009, an increase of 
$30.6 million, or 22.9%, when compared to $133.8 million as of March 31, 2008.   The increase 
in total assets was due primarily to a $24.6 million, or 78.5%, increase in investment securities 
available for sale, and a $10.2 million, or 13.4%, increase in loans, net of allowance for loan 
losses, offset by a $5.8 million, or 29.8%, decrease in cash and cash equivalents. 

The Company's cash and cash equivalents decreased $5.8 million, from $19.5 million at 
March 31, 2008 to $13.7 million at March 31, 2009. The decrease is primarily attributable to 
Company’s federal funds sold balance decreasing by $9.8 million, or 56.4%, from $17.4 million 
at March 31, 2008 to $7.6 million at March 31, 2009.  This decrease was offset by the increase of 
$3.5 million, or 185.3%, in cash and due from banks. The Company elected to increase their 
compensating balance maintained at their correspondent bank to $3.0 million from $100,000.  
The correspondent is participating in the TLGP offered by the FDIC so the compensating balance 
is insured.  The decrease in rates being earned for federal funds sold, 0.16% at March 31, 2009, 
and the receipt of a 0.35% earnings credit to be used in offsetting the processing costs of the 
account were the factors that led to this decision.  The compensating balance can be adjusted at 
any time.  The rate being received on federal funds sold and the earnings credit will be monitored 
monthly. 

Available-for-sale securities increased by $24.6, or 78.5%, to $55.9 million at March 31, 
2009 from $31.3 million at March 31, 2008. The increase was a result of the purchase of $33.9 
million in securities, the increase in the market value of the available-for-sale securities by 
$857,000, the amortization of premiums, net of the accretion of discounts totaling $15,000 and 
the gain of $2,000 on the sale of available for sale securities. These increases were offset by 
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securities payments totaling $7.2 million, and the maturities of $2.1 million and the sale of 
$953,000 in available for sale securities. The investment portfolio is managed to limit the 
Company's exposure to risk and consists primarily of mortgage-backed securities and other 
securities that are either directly or indirectly backed by the federal government or a local 
municipal government. 

The Company had three loans held for sale at March 31, 2009 with a balance of 
$392,000.  This is an increase of $291,000 from March 31, 2008.  Typically the loans held for 
sale are sold within a few days from closing.  The Company’s net loan portfolio increased by 
$10.2 million, or 13.4%, to $86.4 million at March 31, 2009 from $76.2 million at March 31, 
2008.  The majority of the increase in net loans resulted from increases in one-to four family 
loans and commercial business and agricultural finance loans. 

Loans secured by one- to four family residences increased by $4.6 million, or 11.8%, 
from $38.9 million at March 31, 2008 to $43.5 million at March 31, 2009. The increase was the 
result of first mortgage loans increasing by $4.1 million, or 11.8%, from $35.1 million at March 
31, 2008 compared to $39.3 million at March 31, 2009, home equity loans outstanding increasing 
$43,000, or 1.4%, an increase of $55,000, or 6.9%, in second mortgage loans on one- to four-
family residences and an increase in $343,000 in un-disbursed loans in process. 

During the year ended March 31, 2009, $34.8 million in one- to four-family residential 
loans were originated.  This total includes those loans sold into the secondary market through the 
Mortgage Partnership Finance (“MPF”) programs with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago.  
Of the $34.8 million in newly originated loans, $19.6 million were sold into the secondary 
market.  For the year ended March 31, 2008, $22.1 million in one- to four-family loans were 
originated with $9.8 million being sold into the secondary market.   

Multi-family loans increased by 101.0%, or $624,000 from $618,000 at March 31, 2008 
to $1.2 million at March 31, 2009.  The increase in multi-family loans is the result of the 
origination of $1.4 million in new loans offset by payments of $792,000.   

The commercial and agricultural real estate loan portfolios increased by $266,000, or 
1.8%, to$14.8 million at March 31, 2009 from $14.5 million at March 31, 2008. Farmland loans 
experienced $921,000 growth, while commercial real estate loans decreased by $655,000. 

Construction and development loans experienced a $285,000, or 9.8%, decrease for the 
fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 compared to March 31, 2008.  Originations of $2.9 million 
were booked during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 compared to $3.0 million during the 
March 31, 2008 fiscal year.   

Consumer and other loans increased by $1.6 million, or 25.1%, from $6.2 million at 
March 31, 2008 to an outstanding balance of $7.8 million at March 31, 2009. The increase was 
primarily attributable to a $1.0 million loan secured by stock of a financial institution in the other 
loans category, and the increase of $488,000, or 11.0%, in vehicle loans. 

 Loans to State and Municipal governments decreased by $548,000, or 20.2%.  During 
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, $853,000 in loans to state and Municipal governments were 
originated offset by payments of $1.4 million in payments. 

 Commercial business and agricultural production finance loans at March 31, 2008 
totaled $11.7 million as compared to $17.8 million at March 31, 2009, a 52.3% increase.  
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Commercial business loans grew by $4.5 million, which includes $2.1 million available on a 
closed end line of credit while loans for agricultural production grew by $769,000.  Commercial 
business loans are generally secured by equipment, inventory, and accounts receivable while 
agricultural production finance loans are generally secured by farm equipment, grain inventory, 
livestock, and crops. 

At March 31, 2009, the allowance for loan losses was $780,000 or 0.90% of the net loan 
portfolio compared to $727,000, which was 0.95% of net loans, at March 31, 2008. The 
Company's net charge-offs were $167,000 for 2009 compared to $161,000 for 2008. The 
Company had no delinquent loans overdue by 90 days or more and still accruing interest. The 
Company's non-performing loans, which include loans no longer accruing interest, were 
$292,000, or 0.38%, of total loans at March 31, 2008, compared to $235,000, or 0.27%, of total 
loans at March 31, 2009.  Loans are placed on non-accrual status when the collection of principal 
and/or interest become doubtful.  Non-performing assets, which include non-performing loans 
and foreclosed assets, totaled $308,000 at March 31, 2008 compared to $281,000 at March 31, 
2009. Non-performing assets at March 31, 2009 consisted of one- to four-family loans, consumer 
loans and two commercial business loans. Management reviews the adequacy of the allowance 
for loan losses quarterly, and believes that its allowance is adequate; however, the Company 
cannot assure that future charge-offs and/or provisions will not be necessary. 

Premises and equipment increased by $1.0 million from $2.9 million at March 31, 2008 
to $3.9 million on March 31, 2009.  The increase is primarily the result of remodeling the 
commercial building purchased in Vincennes to establish the branch.  The Company also 
purchased an adjacent lot in Vincennes.  The total cost for the premises and equipment was $1.5 
million for the Vincennes branch, with $893,000 being spent during the fiscal year ended March 
31, 2009.  The Company also remodeled the Robinson facility at a cost of $193,000, to establish a 
personal wealth management department, which includes the trust department and our investment 
representative.   

Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stocks increased this fiscal year by 
$3,000, or 0.4%, due to the purchase of $3,000 in Federal Reserve Bank stock. 
 

As of March 31, 2009 and March 31, 2008, the Company had one foreclosed property. 
The foreclosed property held at March 31, 2008 was sold during the fiscal year ended March 31, 
2009 for a loss of $4,000.  During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, two foreclosed 
properties were transferred into Other Real Estate Owned at a total of $120,000. One of the 
properties was sold before March 31, 2009 but a private mortgage insurance claim was filed and 
the Company is awaiting payment on the claim.  The balance of foreclosed assets at March 31, 
2009 was $46,000.  Foreclosed assets are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. 
When foreclosed assets are acquired, any required adjustment is charged to the allowance for loan 
losses. All subsequent activity is included in current operations. 
 

The Company's total deposits increased from $103.9 million at March 31, 2008 to $140.1 
million at March 31, 2009, an increase of $36.2 million, or 34.8%. The increase in total deposits 
was due to an increase of $21.1 million, or 52.7%, in time deposits and a $15.2 million, or 29.8%, 
increase in savings, NOW, and money market accounts, offset by the decrease of $91,000, or 
0.7%, in non-interest bearing checking accounts,.   The total number of demand, NOW, money 
market, and savings accounts increased by 249 from 9,828 accounts at March 31, 2008 to 10,077 
at March 31, 2009.   
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Demand or non-interest bearing accounts have decreased by $91,000 from $12.9 million 
at March 31, 2008 to $12.8 million at March 31, 2009, a 0.7% decrease. The total number of 
consumer, business, and public fund demand accounts decreased by 228 total accounts from 
3,487 accounts at March 31, 2008 to 3,259 accounts at March 31, 2009. 
 
 NOW accounts have increased by $15.3 million, or 53.8%, from $28.4 million at March 
31, 2008 to $53.7 million at March 31, 2009.  The growth can primarily be contributed to our new 
deposit product that kicked off in January 2007, “Kasasa Cash”. “Kasasa” offers higher-than-
market interest rates, which can be earned by customers if they meet specific transaction-
based criteria.  Our criteria promote the use of our internet-based banking services and 
technology. The number of consumer NOW accounts rose by 711 accounts, or 37.3%, from 
1,908 at March 31, 2008 to 2,619 at March 31, 2009 while the number of business and public 
fund NOW accounts rose by 6.   
  

Savings and money market accounts decreased by $94,000 from $22.5 million at March 
31, 2008 to $22.4 million at March 31, 2009.  The number of savings accounts declined from 
4,089 at March 31, 2008 to 3,858 at March 31, 2009, and the outstanding balance of savings 
accounts also decreased by $694,000, or 3.4%, to $19.6 million at March 31, 2009 from $20.3 
million at March 31, 2008.  The total dollar amount invested in money market accounts rose by 
$600,000, or 26.8%, to $2.8 million at March 31, 2009 from $2.2 million at March 31, 2008.  
 

Time deposits have increased by $21.1 million, or 52.7%, from $40.0 million at March 
31, 2008 to $61.1 million at March 31, 2009. The increase in time deposits can primarily be 
attributed to approximately $10.0 million in time deposits, $6.7 million of which are in public 
funds, invested with the Vincennes branch of the Bank, the increase in FDIC insurance from 
$100,000 to $250,000, and the desire of the public to have their money invested in FDIC 
guaranteed funds rather than the market.  At March 31, 2009, time deposits $100,000 or more 
totaled $11.2 million compared to $26.6 million at March 31, 2008. 
 

Other borrowings, or securities sold under agreements to repurchase, at March 31, 2009 
were $9.9 million, a decrease of $6.3 million, or 39.0%, over the March 31, 2008 balance of 
$16.3 million. The obligations are secured by mortgage-backed securities and US Government 
Agencies held in safekeeping at Independent Bankers Bank located in Springfield, Illinois. 
Repurchase agreements, held by the bank, mature periodically within 36 months and are tied to 
the federal funds rate.  With the federal funds rates decreasing this past fiscal year, the average 
rate on the repurchase agreements was 0.30% at March 31, 2009, compared to 1.37% at March 
31, 2008.  
 

Other liabilities increased by $328,000 from $1.8 million at March 31, 2008 to $2.1 
million at March 31, 2009, resulting primarily from an increase in deferred tax offset, in part, by a 
decrease in accrued taxes. 

 
Stockholders' equity at March 31, 2009 was $12.3 million compared to $11.9 million at 

March 31, 2008.  Factors relating to the increase in stockholders’ equity can be attributed to the 
addition of $791,000 in net income offset by $345,000 in dividends declared and paid, the 
increase of $535,000 in accumulated other comprehensive income due to the increase in the fair 
value of securities available for sale, and the increase in additional paid-in-capital of $168,000 
relating to the options exercised during the period and the increase of $125,000 in additional paid-
in-capital due to the expiration of the Recognition and Retention Plan (“RRP”) on July 29, 2008, 
and the issuance of $26,000 in shares to a retired Director, offset by the purchase of $19,000 in 
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incentive plan shares related to the Directors Retirement Plan. These increases are partially offset 
by the repurchase of $889,000 in treasury shares and the receipt of the $125,000 in RRP shares 
offset by the issuance of $164,000 in shares of First Robinson Financial stock relating to the 
exercise of stock options.  

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
  

The Company has entered into performance standby and financial standby letters of 
credit with various local commercial businesses in the aggregate amount of $383,000. The letters 
of credit are collateralized and underwritten, as required by the loan policy, in the same manner as 
any commercial loan.  The Company does not anticipate the advancement of any funds on these 
letters of credit.   

 
Critical Accounting Policies  
 

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company are in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States and conform to general practices within the 
banking industry. The Company's significant accounting policies are described in detail in the 
notes to the Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2009. The 
preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions. The 
financial position and results of operations can be affected by these estimates and assumptions 
and are integral to the understanding of reported results. Critical accounting policies are those 
policies that management believes are the most important to the portrayal of the Company's 
financial condition and results, and they require management to make estimates that are difficult, 
subjective, or complex. 
 

Allowance for Loan Losses - The allowance for loan losses provides coverage for 
probable losses inherent in the Company's loan portfolio. Management evaluates the adequacy of 
the allowance for credit losses each quarter based on changes, if any, in underwriting activities, 
the loan portfolio composition (including product mix and geographic, industry or customer-
specific concentrations), trends in loan performance, regulatory guidance and economic factors. 
This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires the use of significant management 
estimates. Many factors can affect management's estimates of specific and expected losses, 
including volatility of default probabilities, rating migrations, loss severity and economic and 
political conditions. The allowance is increased through provisions charged to operating earnings 
and reduced by net charge-offs. 
 

The Company determines the amount of the allowance based on relative risk 
characteristics of the loan portfolio. The allowance recorded for commercial loans is based on 
reviews of individual credit relationships and an analysis of the migration of commercial loans 
and actual loss experience. The allowance recorded for homogeneous consumer loans is based on 
an analysis of loan mix, risk characteristics of the portfolio, fraud loss and bankruptcy 
experiences, and historical losses, adjusted for current trends, for each homogenous category or 
group of loans. The allowance for credit losses relating to impaired loans is based on the loan's 
observable market price, the collateral for certain collateral-dependent loans, or the discounted 
cash flows using the loan's effective interest rate. 
 

Regardless of the extent of the Company's analysis of customer performance, portfolio 
trends or risk management processes, certain inherent but undetected losses are probable within 
the loan portfolio. This is due to several factors including inherent delays in obtaining 
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information regarding a customer's financial condition or changes in their unique business 
conditions, the judgmental nature of individual loan evaluations, regulatory input, collateral 
assessments and the interpretation of economic trends. Volatility of economic or customer-
specific conditions affecting the identification and estimation of losses for larger non-
homogeneous credits and the sensitivity of assumptions utilized to establish allowances for 
homogeneous groups of loans are among other factors. The Company estimates a range of 
inherent losses related to the existence of the exposures. The estimates are based upon the 
Company's evaluation of risk associated with the commercial and consumer allowance levels and 
the estimated impact of the current economic environment. 

 
See Note 21, Future Change in Accounting Principles, on Notes to Consolidated 

Financial Statements for information concerning the accounting pronouncements issued by the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires us to perform an evaluation of 
our internal control over financial reporting. It will require our auditor to attest to such evaluation 
on an annual basis, beginning in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2010, unless these requirements 
are modified for smaller public companies. Ongoing compliance with these requirements is 
expected to be expensive and time-consuming and may negatively impact our results of 
operations. While our management has not identified any material weaknesses relating to our 
internal controls at March 31, 2009, we cannot make any assurance that material weaknesses in 
our internal control over financial reporting will not be identified in the future.  
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Average Balances/Interest Rates and Yields 
 

The following table presents for the years indicated the total dollar amount of interest 
income from average interest earning assets and the resultant yields, as well as the interest 
expense on average interest bearing liabilities, expressed both in dollars and rates. No tax 
equivalent adjustments were made. All average balances are monthly average balances. Non-
accruing loans have been included in the table as loans carrying a zero yield. 
 
 
 Year Ended March 31, 
 2009 2008 
 Average 

Outstanding 
Balance 

Interest 
Earned 

Paid 
Yield/
Rate 

Average 
Outstanding 

Balance 

Interest 
Earned 

Paid 
Yield/ 
Rate 

Interest-earning assets:       
Loans receivable(1) ..........................  $80,123 $5,371 6.70% $75,507 $5,610 7.43% 
Mortgage-backed securities ............  36,543 1,811 4.96      23,555 1,159        4.92 
Investment securities ......................  8,354 302 3.61 7,103 274     3.86 
Federal funds sold...........................  7,638 114 1.50 6,372 251     3.94 
Interest-bearing deposits.................  933 7 0.71 370 15     4.01 

Total interest-earning 
assets ...........................................  133,591 7,605 5.69 112,907 7,309     6.47 

Noninterest-earning assets................  10,653   7,622   
Total assets..................................  $144,244   $120,529   
       

Interest-bearing liabilities:       
Savings deposits and MMDA.........  22,351 217 0.97 22,416 405    1.81 
NOW deposits.................................  33,156 915 2.76 23,741 597    2.51 
Certificates of deposit .....................  46,526 1,860 4.00 35,142 1,642    4.67 
Borrowings .....................................  15,972 140 0.88 14,431 495    3.43 

Total interest-bearing 
liabilities......................................  118,005 3,132 2.65 95,730 3,139    3.28     

Noninterest-bearing  
liabilities .........................................  14,424 

  
13,192 

  

Total liabilities ............................  132,427   108,922   
Stockholders’ equity .......................  11,817   11,607   

Total liabilities and capital ..........  144,244   $120,529   
Net interest income.........................   $4,473   $4,170  
Net interest spread ..........................    3.04%        3.19% 
Net average earning assets..............  $15,586   $17,177   
Net yield on average earning 
assets...............................................  

  
3.35% 

  
     3.69% 

Average interest-earning assets to 
average interest-bearing liabilities ..  1.132 

  
1.179 

  

   
(1) Calculated net of deferred loan fees, loan discounts, loans in process and loss reserves. 
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Rate/Volume Analysis of Net Interest Income 

The following schedule presents the dollar amount of changes in interest income and interest 
expense for major components of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. It 
distinguishes between the changes related to outstanding balances and in interest rates. For each 
category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information is provided on 
changes attributable to (i) changes in volume (i.e., changes in volume multiplied by old rate) and 
(ii) changes in rate (i.e., changes in rate multiplied by old volume). For purposes of this table, 
changes attributable to both rate and volume, which cannot be segregated, have been allocated 
proportionately to the change due to rate. 
 

 Year Ended March 31, 
 2009 vs. 2008 2008 vs. 2007 
 Increase 

(Decrease) 
Due to 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

Due to 
 

Volume Rate 

Total 
Increase 

(Decrease) Volume Rate 

Total 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Interest-earning assets:       

Loans receivable .................................... $343 $(582) $(239)    $490 $(66) $424 

Mortgage-backed securities ................... 639 13 652 (77)     51   (26) 

Investments securities............................ 48 (20) 28   (5) (9)      (14) 

Other ...................................................... 72 (217) (145) 157     (84)      73 

Total interest-earning assets ............... $1,102 $(806) $296   $565   $(108)   $457 

       

Interest-bearing liabilities:       

Savings deposits and MMDA................ (1) (187) (188) (35) (11) (46) 

NOW accounts....................................... 236 82 318 96      233 329 

Certificate accounts ............................... 532 (314) 218 134 182        316 

Borrowings ............................................ 53 (408) (355) 21 (138)        (117) 

Total interest-bearing liabilities ......... $820 $(827) $(7)    $216  $266      $482 

Net interest income.................................... $282 $21 $303  $349   $(374)        $(25) 
 

Management of Market Risk  

Qualitative Analysis. A principal financial objective of the Company is to achieve 
long-term profitability while reducing exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. The Company has 
sought to reduce exposure of earnings to changes in market interest rates by managing the 
mismatch between asset and liability maturities and interest rates. The Board of Directors has 
formulated an Interest Rate Management Policy designed to achieve this objective and has 
established an Asset/Liability Committee, which consists primarily of the management team of 
the Bank, to manage the risks associated with changes in market interest rates. This committee 
meets periodically and reports to the Board of Directors monthly concerning asset/liability 
policies, strategies and current interest rate risk position. The committee’s first priority is to 
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structure and price assets and liabilities to maintain an acceptable interest spread while reducing 
the net effects of changes in interest rates.   

 
We use a comprehensive asset/liability software package provided by a third-party 

vendor to perform interest rate sensitivity analysis for all product categories.  The primary focus 
of our analysis is on the effect of interest rate increases and decreases on net interest 
income.  Management believes that this analysis reflects the potential effects on current earnings 
of interest rate changes.  Call criteria and prepayment assumptions are taken into consideration 
for investment securities and loans.  All of our interest sensitive assets and liabilities are analyzed 
by product type and repriced based upon current offering rates.  The software performs interest 
rate sensitivity analysis by performing rate shocks of plus or minus 200 basis points in 100 basis 
point increments. 

 Principal elements to promoting long-term profitability while managing interest rate risk 
has been to (i) emphasize the attraction and retention of core deposits, which tend to be a more 
stable source of funding; (ii) emphasize the origination of adjustable rate mortgage loan products 
and relatively short-term and medium-term commercial and consumer loans for the in-house 
portfolio, although this is dependent largely on the market for such loans; (iii) sell longer-term 
fixed-rate one-to four family residential mortgage loans into the secondary market; and (iv) invest 
primarily in U.S. government agency investments and mortgage-backed securities.  

 The principal strategy in managing interest rate risk is to analyze all assets based on rate, 
rate adjustment and maturity versus liabilities and equity with a resulting matrix, (using a 1 month 
to greater than 1 year time frames) being prepared and a net interest income change computed and 
compared to capital. All asset and liability sales strategies are priced on the need of volume in a 
particular time frame. The Company does not engage in hedging activities.  
 
 Notwithstanding efforts in this area, no interest rate risk (“IRR”) policy is foolproof, and 
the Company expects that rising rates could still adversely affect interest income.  
 

Quantitative Analysis.  The Company voluntarily measures IRR and incorporates this 
measure into the internal risk based capital calculation. The IRR component is a dollar amount 
that measures the terms of the sensitivity of the net portfolio value (“NPV”) to changes in interest 
rates. NPV is the difference between incoming and outgoing discounted cash flows from assets, 
liabilities, and off-balance sheet contracts. The Company measures the change to NPV as a result 
of a hypothetical and permanent 100 and 200 basis point (“bp”) change in market interest rates. 
The Company reviews the IRR measurements on a monthly basis. The Company also monitors 
effects on net interest income resulting from increases and decreases in rates. The following table 
presents the NPV at March 31, 2009, as calculated by the Company. 
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 At March 31, 2009 

Net Portfolio Value NPV as % PV of Assets Change in 
Rate  

(Basis Points) $ Amount $ Change % Change NPV Ratio % BP Change 

(Dollars in thousands) 

+200 bp 15,654  (2,082)   (11.74)   9.91 (84) 

100 16,535 (1,201)   (6.78) 10.24 (51) 

0 17,736 --- --- 10.75 --- 

-100 21,635 3,899  21.98 12.86 211 

-200 23,154 5,418 30.55 13.50 275 
 
 In the above table, the first column on the left presents the basis point increments of yield 
curve shifts. The second column presents the overall dollar amount of NPV at each basis point 
increment. The third and forth columns present our actual position in dollar change and 
percentage change in NPV at each basis point increment. The remaining columns present our 
percentage change and basis point change in the NPV as a percentage of portfolio value of assets.  
 
 Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the computation 
of NPV. Although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods within 
which they will reprice, they may react differently to changes in market interest rates. The interest 
rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market 
interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag behind changes in market rates.  
 
 The Board of Directors is responsible for reviewing asset and liability policies and meets 
monthly to review interest rate risk and trends, as well as liquidity and capital ratios and 
requirements. The Board of Directors has established policy limits for changes in NPV. 
Management is responsible for administering the policies and determinations of the Board of 
Directors with respect to asset and liability goals and strategies.  
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources  

 The Company’s primary sources of funds are deposits, repayments and prepayments of 
loans and interest income. Although maturity and scheduled amortization of loans are relatively 
predictable sources of funds, deposit flows and prepayments on loans are influenced significantly 
by general interest rates, economic conditions and competition.  
 
 The Company’s primary investment activity is originating one-to four-family residential 
mortgages, farmland and other non-residential real estate loans, commercial business and 
agricultural finance loans, and consumer loans. For the years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, the 
Company originated loans for the portfolio in the amount of $65.1 million and $46.2 million, 
respectively. For the years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, these activities were primarily 
funded from repayments of $33.5 million and $30.9 million, respectively and sales and 
participations of $20.2 million and $12.1 million, respectively.  
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 The Company’s most liquid assets are cash and cash equivalents, which include short-
term investments. For the years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, cash and cash equivalents were 
$13.7 million and $19.5 million, respectively.  In addition, the Company has used jumbo 
certificates of deposits as a source of funds. Jumbo certificates of deposits represented $26.6 
million and $11.2 million for the years ended March 31, 2009 and March 31, 2008, respectively, 
or 19.0% of total deposits for March 31, 2009 and 10.8% of total deposits for March 31, 2008. 
The increase in jumbo certificates is a result in the increase in the amount of FDIC insurance 
coverage from $100,000 to $250,000.  The Company has monitored and reviewed their liquidity 
and maintains a $26.9 million line of credit with the FHLB, of which no funds were advanced at 
March 31, 2009.  This line can be accessed immediately. The available line of credit with the 
FHLB is reduced by $1.2 million for the credit enhancement reserve established as a result of the 
participation in the FHLB MPF program.  The Company also maintains a $5.0 million revolving 
line of credit and a $600,000 revolving line of credit with Independent Banker’s Bank located in 
Springfield, Illinois. The Company has also established borrowing capabilities at the discount 
window with the Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis and maintains a $3.0 million line with the 
Federal Reserve.  No funds were borrowed on any of the lines at March 31, 2009 and 2008. 
 
 Liquidity management is both an ongoing and long-term function of asset/liability 
management strategy. Excess funds, when applicable, generally are invested in federal funds sold. 
Currently, when funds are required, beyond the ability to generate deposits, additional sources of 
funds are available through federal funds purchased and the FHLB of Chicago. The Company has 
the ability to pledge FHLB of Chicago stock or certain other assets as collateral for such 
advances. Federal funds purchased and FHLB advances are used to fund cash flow shortages. The 
advances are generally less than 1.00% over the average rate paid on certificates of deposit. The 
Company may also use FHLB advances to fund loan demand in excess of the available funds.   
 

Management and the Board of Directors believe that due to significant amounts of 
mortgage-backed securities that could be sold and the ability to acquire funds from the FHLB of 
Chicago and the other correspondent relationships liquidity is adequate for the foreseeable future.  

 
The Bank is required to maintain regulatory capital sufficient to meet Tier I leverage, 

Tier I risk-based and Total risk-based capital ratios of at least 4.0%, 4.0% and 8.0%, respectively. 
At March 31, 2009, the Bank exceeded each of its capital requirements with ratios of 7.5%, 
13.3% and 14.2%, respectively.  See Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 
Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices  

The financial statements and related data presented in this Annual Report have been 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles accepted in the United 
States of America which require the measurement of financial position and operating results in 
terms of historical dollars without considering changes in relative purchasing power of money 
over time due to inflation. The primary impact of inflation on operations is reflected in increased 
operating costs. Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all of the assets and liabilities of a 
financial institution are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates generally have a more 
significant impact on a financial institution’s performance than does inflation. Interest rates do 
not necessarily move in the same direction or to the same extent as the prices of goods and 
services. 
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Assets 
           2009        2008 

   
Cash and due from banks $                        5,424 $                      1,901
Interest-bearing demand deposits 713 264

              Federal funds sold                           7,572                         17,363
Cash and cash equivalents 13,709 19,528

Available-for-sale securities 55,925 31,339
Loans, held for sale 392 101
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $780 and $727 at March 31, 2009 and 2008 86,365 76,145
Premises and equipment 3,940 2,851
Federal Reserve and Federal Home Loan Bank stock 811 808
Foreclosed assets held for sale, net 46 16
Interest receivable 824 758
Prepaid income taxes 81 —
Cash surrender value of life insurance 1,453 1,396
Other assets                            873                            867

 
Total assets $                    164,419 $                  133,809

 

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 
Liabilities 

Deposits 
Demand $                       12,828 $                     12,919
Savings, NOW and money market 66,195 50,979
Time deposits                         61,065                        40,000

Total deposits 140,088 103,898
Other borrowings 9,914 16,253
Advances from borrowers for taxes and insurance 166 149
Accrued income taxes — 159
Deferred income taxes 452 2
Interest payable 330 262
Other liabilities                           1,162                             1,210

 
Total liabilities                       152,112                        121,933
 

Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Stockholders’ Equity 

Preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized 500,000 shares; no shares issued and outstanding — —
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized 2,000,000 shares; issued – 859,625 shares; 

outstanding - 2009 – 435,232 shares, 2008 – 451,464 shares 9 9
Additional paid-in capital; 2009 – 0 shares; 2008 - 7,231 shares 8,791 8,491
Retained earnings 10,560 10,114
Accumulated other comprehensive income  782 247
Treasury stock, at cost 

Common; 2009 – 424,393 shares, 2008 – 400,930 shares                        (7,835)                        (6,985)
 
Total stockholders’ equity                         12,307                         11,876
 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $                     164,419 $     133,809
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 2009 2008 
   
Interest and Dividend Income   

Loans $                5,371  $ 5,610
Securities 

Taxable                    2,006   1,321
Tax-exempt                        97   93

Other interest income                      121 266
Dividends on Federal Reserve and Federal Home Loan Bank stock                        10                            19

 
Total interest and dividend income                    7,605   7,309

 
Interest Expense 

Deposits                    2,992   2,644
Other borrowings                        140   495

   
Total interest expense                     3,132   3,139

 
Net Interest Income                     4,473   4,170
 
Provision for Loan Losses                         220   175
 
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses                      4,253   3,995
 
Non-Interest Income 

Charges and other fees on loans                          143   129
Charges and fees on deposit accounts                        871 885
Net gain on sale of loans 231 141
Net gain on sale of foreclosed property — 3
Net realized gain on sale of securities 2 1
Other                          461   413

 
Total non-interest income                      1,708   1,572

 
Non-Interest Expense 

Compensation and employee benefits                 2,667 2,250
Occupancy and equipment                         655 624
Data processing                        277 228
Audit, legal and other professional services                        217 195
Advertising                        223   133
Telephone and postage                          150 93
Foreclosed property expense                            11 2
Loss on sale of foreclosed property                            4 —
Loss on disposal of fixed assets — 4
Other expenses                         675   608

 
Total non-interest expense                       4,879   4,137

 
Income Before Income Taxes                      1,082   1,430
 
Provision for Income Taxes                        291   459
 
Net Income $                      791  $ 971
 
Basic Earnings Per Share $                     1.84  $ 2.16
 
Diluted Earnings Per Share $                     1.77  $ 2.06
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     Accumulated   

   Additional  Other   
 Common Stock Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Treasury  
 Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Total 

Balance, April 1, 2007     484,908     $              9   $       8,406   $            9,459   $               (199)   $      (5,785)   $     11,890

Comprehensive income 
Net income  971 971
Change in unrealized 

appreciation on available-for-
sale securities, net of taxes of 
$267 446              446
Total comprehensive 

income               1,417
 

Treasury shares purchased   (38,622) (1,290) (1,290)
Dividends on common stock, $0 65 

per share                  (316)              (316)
Stock options exercised 5,178 84 90 174
Incentive compensation (24)                (24)
Incentive shares issued                      25                                                25 

Balance, March 31, 2008     451,464 $                 9   $         8,491   $            10,114   $                  247   $      (6,985)   $     11,876

Comprehensive income 
Net income 791           791
Change in unrealized 

appreciation on available-for-
sale securities, net of taxes of 
$321                    535              535

Total comprehensive 
income           1,326

 

Treasury shares purchased  (25,684)             (889)           (889)
Dividends on common stock, $0 75 

per share                 (345)            (345)
Transfer of Unallocated 

Recognition and Retention 
Shares to Treasury Shares 125 (125) ---

Stock options exercised          9,452                168 164             332
Incentive compensation (19)             (19)
Incentive shares issued                       26                     26 

Balance, March 31, 2009   435,232 $                  9 $          8,791 $             10,560 $                     782 $       (7,835) $        12,307
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 2009 2008 

 
Operating Activities 

Net income    $                    791  $ 971
Items not requiring (providing) cash 

Depreciation and amortization                            272   293
Provision for loan losses                              220   175
Amortization of premiums and discounts on securities                            (15)   (39)
Amortization of loan-servicing rights                              75   70
Impairment of loan servicing rights 54 —
Compensation related to incentive plan 26 25
Compensation related to options exercised                              182   105
Deferred income taxes                            128   (56)
Originations of mortgage loans held for sale                   (19,605) (9,875)
Proceeds from the sale of mortgage loans 19,545   9,915
Net gain on sale of loans                            (231) (141)
Net (gain) loss on sale of foreclosed property 4                         (3) 
Net realized gain on sale of securities (2) (1)
Net loss on disposal of premises and equipment — 4
Cash surrender value of life insurance                            (57)   (55)

Changes in 
Interest receivable                             (66)   (21)
Other assets                          (173)   (324)
Interest payable                              68   59
Other liabilities                            (48)   173
Income taxes, prepaid/accrued                       (240)   5

 
Net cash provided by operating activities                          928   1,280

 
Investing Activities   

Purchases of available-for-sale securities   (33,917)   (4,933)
Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale securities   2,100   301
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities   953   —
Repayment of principal on mortgage-backed securities   7,152   4,979
Purchase of Federal Reserve Bank stock   (3)   (3)
Net change in loans   (10,560)   (5,290)
Purchase of premises and equipment   (1,323)   (631)
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets   86   27
 

Net cash used in investing activities    (35,512)   (5,550)
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 2009 2008 

   
Financing Activities   

Net increase in demand deposits, money market, NOW and savings 
accounts   15,125   9,674

Net increase in time deposits   21,065 7,451
Proceeds from other borrowings   134,176   138,703
Repayment of other borrowings   (140,515)   (134,538)
Purchase of incentive plan shares   (19)   (24)
Federal funds purchased                        —   95,955
Repayment of federal funds purchased                      —   (95,955)
Proceeds received from exercise of options                        150                             69
Purchase of treasury shares                        (889)   (1,290)
Dividends paid   (345)   (316)
Net increase in advances from borrowers for taxes and insurance   17   20

 
Net cash provided by financing activities                   28,765   19,749

 
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents   (5,819)   15,479
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year   19,528   4,049

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year  $ 13,709  $ 19,528
 
   
Supplemental Cash Flows Information   

   
Interest paid  $ 3,064  $ 3,080
 
Income taxes paid (net of refunds)   428 512
 
Real estate acquired in settlement of loans   120   40

 
 
 
 
 



First Robinson Financial Corporation 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

March 31, 2009 and 2008 
 
 

 
31 

Note 1:  Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 

First Robinson Financial Corporation (the “Company”) is a financial holding company whose 
principal activity is the ownership and management of its wholly-owned subsidiary, First 
Robinson Savings Bank, N.A. (the “Bank”).  The Bank is primarily engaged in providing a full 
range of banking and financial services to individual and corporate customers in Crawford and 
surrounding counties in Illinois and Knox and surrounding counties in Indiana.  The Bank is 
subject to competition from other financial institutions.  The Company and the Bank are subject 
to the regulation of certain federal and state agencies and undergo periodic examinations by 
those regulatory authorities. 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and the Bank.  All 
significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.   

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the 
determination of the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of real estate acquired in 
connection with foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans, Federal Home Loan Bank stock 
impairment, and loan servicing rights.  In connection with the determination of the allowance 
for loan losses and the valuation of foreclosed assets held for sale, management obtains 
independent appraisals for significant properties. In connection with the determination of 
Federal Home Loan Bank stock impairment, management performed an analysis based on the 
Federal Home Loan Bank’s current activities.  The Company obtained a third-party valuation in 
the impairment analysis of the loan servicing rights. 

Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to 
be cash equivalents.  At March 31, 2009 and 2008, cash equivalents consisted primarily of 
federal funds sold and interest-bearing demand deposits. 

The financial institutions holding the Company’s cash accounts are participating in the FDIC’s 
Transaction Account Guarantee Program.  Under that program, through December 31, 2009, all 
noninterest-bearing transaction accounts are fully guaranteed by the FDIC for the entire amount 
in the account. 
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Effective October 3, 2008, the FDIC’s insurance limits increased to $250,000.  The increase is 
set to expire December 31, 2013, at which time deposit insurance limits will be reduced to 
$100,000.  At March 31, 2009, the Company’s interest-bearing cash accounts did not exceed 
federally insured limits. 

Securities 

Available-for-sale securities, which include any security for which the Company has no 
immediate plan to sell but which may be sold in the future, are carried at fair value.  Unrealized 
gains and losses are recorded, net of related income tax effects, in other comprehensive income.  

Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts are recorded as interest income from 
securities.  Realized gains and losses are recorded as net security gains (losses).  Gains and 
losses on sales of securities are determined on the specific-identification method. 

Loans Held for Sale 

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale on the secondary market are carried at the 
lower of cost or fair value in the aggregate. Net realized losses, if any, are recognized through a 
valuation allowance by charges to income. Three loans were held at March 31, 2009 and one 
loan was held at March 31, 2008. 

Loans 

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until 
maturity or payoffs are reported at their outstanding principal balances adjusted for any charge-
offs, the allowance for loan losses, and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans.  Interest 
income is accrued on the unpaid balance and includes amortization of net deferred loan fees and 
costs over the loan term without anticipating prepayments.  Generally, loans are placed on non-
accrual status at ninety days past due and interest is considered a loss, unless the loan is well-
secured and in the process of collection.  Interest received on such loans is accounted for on the 
cash-basis method, until qualifying for return to accrual. 

Allowance for Loan Losses  

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a 
provision for loan losses charged to income.  Loan losses are charged against the allowance 
when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed.  Subsequent 
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. 

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon 
management’s periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience, 
the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s 
ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral, and prevailing economic 
conditions.  This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires estimates that are susceptible 
to significant revision as more information becomes available. 

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that 
the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due, 
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according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.  Factors considered by management in 
determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of 
collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due.  Loans that experience 
insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired.  
Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-
by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the 
borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior 
payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.  
Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial and construction loans by 
either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest 
rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral 
dependent. 

Groups of loans with similar risk characteristics, including individually evaluated loans not 
determined to be impaired, are collectively evaluated for impairment based on the group’s 
historical loss experience adjusted for changes in trends, conditions and other relevant factors 
that affect repayment of the loans.  Accordingly, the Company does not separately identify 
individual consumer and residential loans for impairment measurements. 

Premises and Equipment 

Depreciable assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation is charged to 
expense using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.  Estimated 
lives are generally 30 to 40 years for premises and 3 to 5 years for equipment. 

Federal Reserve Bank Stock 

Federal Reserve Bank stock is a required investment for institutions that are members of the 
Federal Reserve Bank systems.  The required investment in the common stock is based on a 
predetermined formula. 

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 

Federal Home Loan Bank stock is stated at cost and is a required investment for institutions that 
are members of the Federal Home Loan Bank system. The required investment in the common 
stock is based on a predetermined formula.  

The Company owns approximately $642,000 of Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago 
(“FHLB”) stock as of March 31, 2009 and 2008. During the third quarter of 2007, FHLB 
received a Cease and Desist Order from their regulator, the Federal Housing Finance Board. 
The order prohibits capital stock repurchases and redemptions until a time to be determined by 
the Federal Housing Finance Board. The FHLB will continue to provide liquidity and funding 
through advances. With regard to dividends, the FHLB will continue to assess their dividend 
capacity each quarter and may make appropriate request for approval from their regulator. Since 
the FHLB did not pay a dividend during the fourth quarter of 2007 or the calendar year of 2008, 
the stock is considered a non-performing asset as of March 31, 2009 and 2008. Management 
performed an analysis and determined the investment in this FHLB stock was not impaired as of 
March 31, 2009 and 2008.  
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Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale 

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially 
recorded at the lower of the carrying value of the loan or fair value at the date of foreclosure, 
establishing a new cost basis.  Subsequent to foreclosure, management periodically performs 
valuations and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to 
sell.  Revenue and expenses from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are 
included in net income or expense from foreclosed assets. 

Mortgage Servicing Rights 

Mortgage servicing rights on originated loans that have been sold are recorded at inception at 
fair value.  Capitalized servicing rights are amortized in proportion to and over the period of 
estimated servicing revenues.  Impairment of mortgage-servicing rights is assessed based on the 
fair value of those rights.  Fair values are estimated using discounted cash flows based on a 
current market interest rate.  For purposes of measuring impairment, the rights are stratified 
based on the predominant risk characteristics of the underlying loans.  The predominant 
characteristics currently used for stratification are type of loan and origination date.  The 
amount of impairment recognized is the amount by which the capitalized mortgage servicing 
rights for a stratum exceed their fair value.    

Incentive Plans 

The Company accounts for its recognition and retention plan (RRP) in accordance with 
Accounting Principle Board Opinion (APB) No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.  
The aggregate purchase price of all shares owned by the incentive plan is reflected as a 
reduction of stockholder’s equity.  Compensation expense is based on the market price of the 
Company’s stock on the date the shares are granted and is recorded over the vesting period.  
The difference between the aggregate purchase price and the fair value on the date granted of 
the shares earned is recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-in capital. 

In addition, the Company has a Director’s Retirement Plan (DRP) deferred compensation plan 
where certain directors’ fees earned are deferred and placed in a “Rabbi Trust”.  The DRP 
purchases stock of the Company with the funds.  The deferred liability is equal to the shares 
owned multiplied by the market value at year-end.  The deferred value of the shares purchased 
are netted from additional paid in capital.  The change in share price is reflected as 
compensation expense subject to the transitional provisions for shares held by the Rabbi Trust at 
September 30, 1998.  For the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company recognized a decrease 
to expense of $14,000 related to the decrease in the value of its common stock held in the Rabbi 
Trust. An increase in the valuation of the common stock held in the Rabbi Trust resulted in a 
$22,000 expense for the year ended March 31, 2008.   

Employee Stock Ownership Plan 

The Company accounts for its employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) in accordance with the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) Statement of Position 93-6.  The 
cost of shares issued to the ESOP but not yet allocated to participants are presented in the 
consolidated balance sheet as a reduction of stockholders’ equity.  Compensation expense is 
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recorded based on the market price of the shares, as they are committed to be released for 
allocation to participant accounts.  The difference between the market price and the cost of 
shares committed to be released are recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-in capital.  
Dividends on allocated ESOP shares are recorded as a reduction of retained earnings; dividends 
on unallocated ESOP shares are reflected as a reduction of debt. 

The Company’s ESOP was completely funded and considered to be fully allocated as of 
December 31, 2006.  See Note 15 for further discussion. 

Shares are considered outstanding for earnings per share calculations when they are committed 
to be released; unallocated shares are not considered outstanding. 

Treasury Stock 

Treasury stock is stated at cost.  Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method. 

Stock Options 

At March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company has a stock-based employee compensation plan, 
which is described more fully in Note 16.  The Company accounts for this plan under the 
recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to 
Employees, and related Interpretations.  Historically, stock-based employee compensation cost 
is not reflected in net income until options are exercised.  All options granted under this plan 
had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the grant 
date and were fully vested prior to March 31, 2009 and 2008.   

Income Taxes 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the tax effects of differences between the 
financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities.  A valuation allowance is established 
to reduce deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that a deferred tax asset will not be 
realized.  The Company files consolidated income tax returns with its subsidiary. 

Earnings Per Share 

Earnings per share have been computed based upon the weighted-average common shares 
outstanding during each year.  Unearned ESOP shares and unallocated incentive shares have 
been excluded from the computation of average shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share 
computations are based upon the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 
period plus the dilutive effect of outstanding stock options and incentive plan shares. 

Adoption of New Accounting Standards 

Statement of Financial Accounting No. 157 (“FAS 157”), “Fair Value Measurements” – 
This Statement establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied to GAAP guidance 
requiring use of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands 
disclosure about such fair value measurements.  FAS 157 became effective for fiscal years 
beginning after November 15, 2007.  The Company adopted FAS 157 effective April 1, 
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2008.  The application of FAS 157 did not have a material impact on the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements. 

FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. 157-3, “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset 
When the Market for That Asset is Not Active.” In October 2008, the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (‘FASB’) issued FSP No. 157-3, FSP 157-3 clarifies the application of 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 (FAS 157), “Fair Value Measurements,” 
in a market that is not active and provides an example to illustrate key considerations in 
determining fair value of financial assets when the market for that financial asset is not active.  
FSP 157-3 applies to financial assets within the scope of accounting pronouncements that 
require or permit fair value measurements in accordance with FAS 157.  FSP 157-3 was 
effective upon the issuance and included prior periods for which financial statements had not 
been issued.  The application of FSP 157-3 did not have a material impact on the Company’s 
condensed consolidated financial statements 

Statement of Financial Accounting No. 159 (“FAS 159”), “The Fair Value Option for 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – including an amendment of FASB Statement 
No. 115” - In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS 159.  This Statement permits entities to 
choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value.  Unrealized 
gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected will be reported in 
earnings.  The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing entities with the 
opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and 
liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions.  This 
Statement is expected to expand the use of fair value measurement, which is consistent with the 
FASB’s long-term measurement objectives for accounting for financial instruments.  FAS 159 
became effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007.  The Company did not 
elect the fair value option for any financial assets or liabilities as of March 31, 2009. 

FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS 140-4 and FIN 46(R)-8, “Disclosures by Public Entities 
(Enterprises) About Transfers of Financial Assets and Interests in Variable Interest Entities” 
– In December 2008, the FASB issued this FSP to amend disclosure guidance in FAS 140 and 
FIN 46 (revised December 2003).  The FSP requires public entities to provide additional 
disclosures about transfers of financial assets and their involvement with variable interest 
entities.  The FSP became effective December 31, 2008.  The application of this FSP did not 
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 

 FSP EITF 99-20-1, “Amendments to the Impairment and Interest Income Measurement 
Guidance of EITF Issue 99-20” – In January 2009, the FASB issued FSP EITF 99-20-1 to 
amend the impairment guidance in EITF Issue No. 99-20 in order to achieve more consistent 
determination of whether an other-than-temporary impairment (‘OTTI”) has occurred.  Prior to 
this FSP, the impairment model in EITF 99-20 was different from FASB Statement No. 115 
(“FAS 115”), “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.”  This FSP 
amended EITF 99-20 to more closely align the OTTI guidance therein to the guidance in FAS 
115. The implementation of this FSP did not have a material impact on the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements. 
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New Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Effective 

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business 
Combinations—A Replacement of FASB Statement No. 141” (“SFAS No. 141(R)”) and 
Statement No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—An 
Amendment of ARB No. 51” (“SFAS No. 160”). SFAS No. 141(R) establishes principles and 
requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures certain items in a business 
combination, as well as disclosures about the nature and financial effects of a business 
combination. SFAS No. 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards surrounding 
noncontrolling interest, or minority interests, which are the portions of equity in a subsidiary not 
attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent. The pronouncements are effective for fiscal years 
beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and apply prospectively to business combinations, 
meaning they are effective for the Company beginning April 1, 2009. Presentation and 
disclosure requirements related to noncontrolling interests must be retrospectively applied. 
Management is currently evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 141(R) on its accounting for future 
acquisitions; management has evaluated the requirements of SFAS No. 141(R) and believes it 
will not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments 
and Hedging Activities—An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 133” (“SFAS No. 161”). 
SFAS No. 161 requires enhanced qualitative disclosures about objectives and strategies for 
using derivatives, quantitative disclosures about fair value amounts of and gains and losses on 
derivative instruments, and disclosures about credit-risk-related contingent features in derivative 
agreements. SFAS No. 161 was effective for the Company for the interim period which begins 
April 1, 2009, and is not expected to have an effect on the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements. 

In April 2009, the FASB issued the FASB Staff Position on FAS 157-4, “Determining Fair 
Value When the Volume and Level of Activity For the Asset or Liability Have Significantly 
Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly” (FSP 157-4).  FSP 157-4 
provides additional guidance for estimating fair value in accordance with SFAS 157 when the 
volume and level of activity for the asset or liability have decreased significantly.  FSP 157-4 
also provides guidance on identifying circumstances that indicate a transaction is not 
orderly.  The provisions of FSP 157-4 will be effective for the Company’s fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2010.  Management is currently evaluating the impact of FSP 157-4, and believes 
implementation will not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements. 

In April 2009, the FASB issued the FASB Staff Position on FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-
2, “Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments” (the FSP).  The FSP 
establishes a methodology of determining and recording other-than-temporary impairments of 
debt securities and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.  The provisions of the 
FSP will be effective for the Company’s fiscal year ended March 31, 2010.   Management is 
currently evaluating the impact of the FSP. 
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In April 2009, the FASB issued the FASB Staff Position on FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, “Interim 
Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments” (the FSP).  The FSP requires 
disclosures about fair value of financial instruments in interim reporting periods of publicly-
traded companies that were previously only required to be disclosed in annual financial 
statements.  The provisions of the FSP are effective for the Company for the interim period 
ended June 30, 2009, and, as the FSP amends only the disclosure requirements about fair value 
of financial instruments in interim periods, adoption is not expected to affect the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements. 

In May 2009, the FASB issued Statement No. 165, “Subsequent Events”.  SFAS No. 165 
establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the 
balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or available to be issued.  The 
Statement does not apply to subsequent events or transactions that are within the scope of other 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) that provide different guidance on the 
accounting treatment for subsequent events or transactions.  The Statement is effective for 
interim or annual financial periods after June 15, 2009.    The Company will apply the Statement 
for the interim period ended June 30, 2009 and it is not expected to have a material affect to the 
Company’s consolidated financial statements. 

Reclassifications 

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2008 financial statements to conform to the 
2009 financial statement presentation.  These classifications had no effect on net income. 
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Note 2:     Restriction on Cash and Due From Banks 

The Company is required to maintain reserve funds in cash and/or on deposit with the Federal 
Reserve Bank.  The reserve required at March 31, 2009, was $1,237,000 with no reserve 
requirement for March 31, 2008. 

Note 3:     Available-for-Sale Securities 

The amortized cost and approximate fair values of available-for-sale securities are as follows: 

 
Amortized 

Cost 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 
Approximate 

Fair Value 
  (In thousands)  
March 31, 2009     

U.S. government agencies  $ 9,793 $ 199 $ — $ 9,992
Mortgage-backed securities   39,878  1,045  22  40,901
State and political subdivisions   5,002  52  22  5,032

 
  $ 54,673 $ 1,296 $ 44 $ 55,925

March 31, 2008 
U.S. government agencies  $ 3,733 $ 102 $ — $ 3,835
Mortgage-backed securities   25,046  314  58  25,302
State and political subdivisions   2,165  43  6  2,202

 
  $ 30,944 $ 459 $ 64 $ 31,339

 
The amortized cost and fair value of available-for-sale securities at March 31, 2009, by 
contractual maturity, are shown below.  Expected maturities will differ from contractual 
maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call 
or prepayment penalties. 

  

 
Amortized 

Cost 
Fair  

Value 
 (In thousands) 
   
Within one year  $ 1,088  $ 1,098
One to five years   12,111   12,335
Five to ten years   1,596   1,591
 
Investment securities   14,795   15,024
Mortgage-backed securities   39,878   40,901
 

Totals  $ 54,673  $ 55,925
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The carrying value of securities pledged as collateral, to secure public deposits and for other 
purposes, was $16,608,000 at March 31, 2009, and $5,273,000 at March 31, 2008. 

In addition to the securities pledged as collateral, the Company had purchased letters of credit 
with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago.  As of March 31, 2009, the Company had no 
purchased letters of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank used to secure public deposits.  At 
March 31, 2008, $6,000,000 in purchased letters of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank  
were also pledged to secure public deposits. The book value of securities sold under agreements 
to repurchase amounted to $11,853,000 and $16,374,000 at March 31, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively. 

Two available-for-sale securities were sold during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 
resulting in a gross gain of $4,000 on one security and a gross loss of $2,000 on the other 
security being realized.  For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, no available-for-sale 
securities were sold.  However, $300,000 in municipal bonds were called resulting in a gain of 
$1,000 for the year ended March 31, 2008. 

Certain investments in debt securities are reported in the financial statements at an amount less 
than their historical cost.  Total fair value of these investments at March 31, 2009 and 2008, was 
$6,947,000 and $7,761,000, respectively, which is approximately 12.4% and 24.6%, 
respectively, of the Company’s available-for-sale investment portfolio.  These declines 
primarily resulted from recent changes in market interest rates. 

Based on evaluation of available evidence, including recent changes in market interest rates, 
credit rating information, and information obtained from regulatory filings, management 
believes the declines in fair value for these securities are temporary.  

Should the impairment of any of these securities become other than temporary, the cost basis of 
the investment will be reduced and the resulting loss recognized in net income in the period the 
other-than-temporary impairment is identified. 

The following table shows our investments’ gross unrealized losses and fair value (in 
thousands), aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have 
been in a continuous unrealized loss position at March 31, 2009 and 2008.   

Description of Securities Less than 12 Months More than 12 Months Total 

 Fair Value 
Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value 
Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value 
Unrealized 

Losses 
As of March 31, 2009       

 Mortgage-backed securities   $  6,307   $  20  $ 125  $ 2 $  6,432   $  22
State and political subdivisions   290   16   225   6   515   22

Total temporarily impaired 
securities  $ 6,597  $ 36  $ 350  $ 8 $ 6,947  $ 44

 

As of March 31, 2008       
 Mortgage-backed securities $  6,471   $  45   $  1,063  $ 13 $  7,534   $  58
State and political subdivisions   —   —   227   6   227   6

Total temporarily impaired 
securities  $ 6,471  $ 45  $ 1,290  $ 19 $ 7,761  $ 64
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Note 4:     Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses 

Categories of loans at March 31, include: 

 2009 2008 
 (In thousands) 
   
Loans held for sale $           392 $               101
Residential real estate   43,511                38,923 
Multi-family real estate 1,242 618
Commercial and agriculture real estate   14,793   14,527
Real estate construction and development property                  2,624   2,909
State and municipal government   2,172   2,720
Consumer and other  7,783   6,221
Commercial business and agricultural finance    17,835   11,710
 

Total loans   90,352   77,729
 
Less 

Deferred loan fees 4 6
Undisbursed portion of loans   2,811   750
Allowance for loan losses   780   727

 
Net loans  $ 86,757  $ 76,246

 

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows: 

 2009 2008 
 (In thousands) 
   
Balance, beginning of year  $ 727  $ 729
Provision charged to expense   220   175
Losses charged off, net of recoveries of $28 for 2009 and 

$19 for 2008   (167)   (161)
Establish off-balance sheet assets reserve   —   (16)
 
Balance, end of year  $ 780  $ 727

 

Impaired loans totaled $256,000 and $292,000 at March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  An 
allowance for loan losses of $40,000 and $145,000 relates to impaired loans of $154,000 and 
$182,000, at March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  At March 31, 2009 and 2008, impaired 
loans of $102,000 and $110,000, respectively, had no related allowance for loan losses. 

Interest of $5,000 and $6,000 was recognized on average impaired loans of $214,000 and 
$293,000 for 2009 and 2008, respectively.  Interest of $5,000 and $6,000 was recognized on 
impaired loans on a cash basis during 2009 and 2008, respectively. 
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At March 31, 2009 and 2008, there were no accruing loans delinquent 90 days or more.  Non-
accruing loans at March 31, 2009 and 2008 were $235,000 and $292,000, respectively. 

At March 31, 2009, the Company has a commercial loan totaling $1.0 million, secured by the 
common stock of a financial institution.  The borrower has been under increased regulatory 
pressure with respect to its capital position in recent months due to the borrowers deteriorating 
investment portfolio.  The borrower is in the process of securing additional capital to address 
the regulatory concerns.  The allowance for loan losses reflects management’s best estimate of 
the anticipated losses in this loan.  Due to the nature of the collateral, the Company could incur 
additional losses. 

 

Note 5:     Premises and Equipment 

Major classifications of premises and equipment stated at cost, are as follows: 

 2009 2008 
 (In thousands) 
   
Land  $ 1,095  $ 586
Buildings and improvements   3,429   3,059
Equipment   2,509   2,065
 
   7,033   5,710
Less accumulated depreciation   3,093   2,859

 
Net premises and equipment  $ 3,940  $ 2,851

 

Note 6:     Loan Servicing 

Mortgage loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets.  The unpaid principal balances of mortgage loans serviced for others was $36,100,000 
and $25,468,000 at March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

Custodial escrow balances maintained in connection with the foregoing loan servicing, and 
included in demand deposits, were approximately $1,270,000 and $1,265,000 at March 31, 
2009 and 2008, respectively. 

The aggregate fair value of capitalized mortgage servicing rights at March 31, 2009 and 2008 
totaled $243,000 and $194,000, respectively, and are included in “other assets” on the 
consolidated balance sheets.  Comparable market values and a valuation model that calculates 
the present value of future cash flows were used to estimate fair value.  For purposes of 
measuring impairment, risk characteristics, including type of loan and origination date, were 
used to stratify the originated mortgage servicing rights. 
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 2009 2008 
 (In thousands) 
 
Mortgage servicing rights 

Balance, beginning of year  $ 194  $ 143
Servicing rights capitalized   178   121
Amortization of servicing rights   (75)   (70)
Valuation allowance   (54)   —
 
Balance, end of year  $ 243  $ 194
 

For purposes of measuring impairment, risk characteristics (including product type, investor 
type, and interest rates) were used to stratify the originated mortgage servicing rights.  Activity 
in the valuation allowance was as follows: 

 2009 2008 
 (In thousands) 
 

Balance, beginning of year  $ —  $ —
Additions   54   —
 
Balance, end of year  $ 54  $ —
 

 

 

Note 7:    Interest-bearing Deposits 

Interest-bearing time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more were $26,628,000 on 
March 31, 2009, and $11,221,000 on March 31, 2008. 

At March 31, 2009, the scheduled maturities (in thousands) of time deposits are as follows: 

2010  $ 38,744
2011   10,805
2012   7,751
2013   2,022
2014   1,243
Thereafter   500

 
  $ 61,065
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Note 8:     Other Borrowings 

Other borrowings included the following at March 31: 

 2009 2008 
 (In thousands) 
   
Securities sold under repurchase agreements  $ 9,914  $ 16,253

 

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase consist of obligations of the Company to other 
parties.  The obligations are secured by mortgage-backed securities and U.S. Government 
Agencies and such collateral is held by the Company in safekeeping at Independent Bankers 
Bank located in Springfield, Illinois.  The maximum amount of outstanding agreements at any 
month end during 2009 and 2008 totaled $18,761,000 and $18,233,000, respectively, and the 
monthly average of such agreements totaled $15,929,000 and $13,683,000 for 2009 and 2008, 
respectively. The average rates on the agreements during 2009 and 2008 were 0.86% and 
3.51%, respectively. The average rate at March 31 2009 was 0.30% and 1.37% at March 31, 
2008. The agreements at March 31, 2009, mature periodically within 36 months. 

 

Note 9:   Lines of Credit 

The Company maintains a $600,000 revolving line of credit note payable, of which none was 
outstanding at March 31, 2009 and 2008, with an unaffiliated financial institution. The note 
payable bears interest at the prime commercial rate (3.25% at March 31, 2009), matures on July 
31, 2009, and is unsecured. 

The Bank maintains a $5,000,000 revolving line of credit, of which none was outstanding at 
March 31, 2009 and 2008, with an unaffiliated financial institution. The line bears interest at 
the federal funds rate of the financial institution (1.0% at March 31, 2009), has an open-end 
maturity and is unsecured if used for less than fifteen (15) consecutive business days. 

The Bank has also established borrowing capabilities at the Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis 
discount window. Investment securities of $3,000,000 have been pledged as collateral.  As of 
March 31, 2009 and 2008, no amounts were outstanding.   The primary credit borrowing rate at 
March 31, 2009 was 0.50%, has a term of up to 90 days, and has no restrictions on use of the 
funds borrowed. 

 

Note 10: Federal Home Loan Bank Advances and Deposits 

The Company maintains a $26,904,000 line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of 
Chicago (“FHLB”).  No FHLB advances were outstanding as of the years ended March 31, 
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2009 and 2008.  However, the line of credit is decreased by $1,188,000 in credit enhancements 
related to the Mortgage Partnership Program with the FHLB.  The line of credit is secured by 
one-to four-family mortgage loans totaling $37,557,000 at March 31, 2009.   

At March 31, 2009 and 2008, the amount of interest bearing deposits invested with the Federal 
Home Loan Bank of Chicago were $713,000 and $264,000, respectively. 

 

Note 11:  Income Taxes 

The provision for income taxes includes these components: 

 2009 2008 
 (In thousands) 
Taxes currently payable $  163  $ 515
Deferred income taxes   128   (56)

 
Income tax expense  $ 291  $ 459

 

A reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory rate to the Company’s actual income tax 
expense is shown below: 

 2009 2008 
 (In thousands) 
Computed at the statutory rate (34%)  $                 368  $ 486
Increase (decrease) resulting from 

Tax exempt interest                      (54)   (62)
State income taxes 43   89
Life insurance cash value (19) (19)
Other   (47)   (35)

 
Actual tax expense  $ 291  $ 459

 

The tax effects of temporary differences related to deferred taxes shown on the consolidated 
balance sheets were: 

 2009 2008 
 (In thousands) 
Deferred tax assets   

Allowance for loan losses  $ 311  $ 279
Deferred compensation   166   181
Other   20   −
 
   497   460
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Deferred tax liabilities   

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities  $            (470) $             (149) 
Depreciation   (371)   (209)
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock dividend                    (108)   (104)

 
   (949)   (462)
 
Net deferred tax liability  $ (452)  $ (2)

 

Note 12: Other Comprehensive Income  

Other comprehensive income components and related taxes were as follows: 

 2009 2008 
 (In thousands) 
   
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities  $ 858  $ 714
Less reclassification adjustment for realized gains 

included in income   2   1
 
Other comprehensive income, before tax effect   856   713

Tax expense    321   267
 
Other comprehensive income related to available-

for-sale securities  $ 535  $ 446
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Note 13: Regulatory Matters 

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal 
banking agencies.  Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory 
and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a 
direct material effect on the Company’s financial statements.  Under capital adequacy 
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet 
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, 
and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.  The 
Bank’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the 
regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to 
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital 
(as defined in the regulation) to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and Tier 1 capital (as defined) 
to average assets (as defined).  Management believes, as of March 31, 2009 and 2008, that the 
Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject. 

As of March 31, 2009, the most recent notification from the Comptroller categorized the Bank 
as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.  To be 
categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-
based, and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table.  There are no conditions or events since 
that notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s category. 

The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table.  A total of $24,000 
and $19,000 were deducted from capital for interest-rate risk in 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

 Actual 
For Capital Adequacy 

Purposes 

To Be Well Capitalized 
Under Prompt Corrective 

Action Provisions 
 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 

As of March 31, 2009 (Amounts In Thousands) 
Total risk-based capital 

(to risk-weighted assets) $12,657 14.2% $7,147 8.0% $8,934 10.0% 
       
Tier I capital 

(to risk-weighted assets) $11,857 13.3% $3,573 4.0% $5,360 6.0% 
       
Tier I capital 

(to average assets) $11,857 7.5% $6,305 4.0% $7,882 5.0% 
       

As of March 31, 2008       
Total risk-based capital 

(to risk-weighted assets) $12,237 16.1% $6,095 8.0% $7,619 10.0% 
       
Tier I capital 

(to risk-weighted assets) $11,484 15.1% $3,048 4.0% $4,572 6.0% 
       
Tier I capital 

(to average assets) $11,484 9.1% $5,055 4.0% $6,318 5.0% 
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The Bank is subject to certain restrictions on the amount of dividends that it may declare 
without prior regulatory approval. 

At the time of the conversion of the Bank to a stock organization, a special liquidation account 
was established for the benefit of eligible account holders and the supplemental eligible account 
holders in an amount equal to the net worth of the Bank.  The special liquidation account will be 
maintained for the benefit of eligible account holders and the supplemental eligible account 
holders who continue to maintain their accounts in the Bank after June 27, 1997.  The special 
liquidation account was $5,070,000 as of that date.  In the unlikely event of a complete 
liquidation, each eligible and supplemental eligible accounts holders will be entitled to receive a 
liquidation distribution from the liquidation account in an amount proportionate to the current 
adjusted qualifying balances for accounts then held.  The Bank may not declare or pay cash 
dividends on or repurchase any of its common stock if stockholders’ equity would be reduced 
below applicable regulatory capital requirements or below the special liquidation account. 

 

Note 14: Related Party Transactions 

At March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had loans outstanding to executive officers, 
directors, and significant stockholders and their affiliates (related parties).  Changes in loans to 
executive officers, directors, and significant stockholders and their affiliates are as follows: 

Balance beginning of year  $ 2,410 
Additions    335 
Repayments    (178)
Change in related parties    —
         
Balance, end of year  $ 2,567 

  
Deposits from related parties held by the Company at March 31, 2009 and 2008, totaled 
approximately $674,000, and $584,000 respectively. 

In management’s opinion, such loans and other extensions of credit and deposits were made in 
the ordinary course of business and were made on substantially the same terms (including 
interest rates and collateral) as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with 
other persons.  Further, in management’s opinion, these loans did not involve more than normal 
risk of collectibility or present other unfavorable features. 

 

Note 15: Employee Benefits  

The Company has a defined contribution pension plan covering all employees with three 
months of employment and minimum age of 21.  Employees may contribute up to the maximum 
amount allowed by law annually with the Bank matching 2% of the employee’s contribution on 
the first 4% of the employee’s compensation.  Employer contributions charged to expense for 
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2009 and 2008 were $31,000 and $17,000, respectively.  The Company accrued for a profit 
sharing contribution that was paid after the end of fiscal year 2009 based on the employee’s 
compensation for the calendar year ended December 31, 2008.  As of March 31, 2009 and 2008, 
the employer contribution charged to expense was $133,000 and $132,000. 

Also, the Company has a deferred compensation agreement with active Directors.  The 
agreement provides annual contributions of $2,000 per year per director to be paid on January 
1st of each year.   The contributions are used to purchase shares of the Company’s stock which 
are held in trust for the Directors until retirement.  The total number of shares in the plan as of 
March 31, 2009 and 2008 is 15,778 and 15,968 respectively.  The difference between current 
year and prior year shares outstanding relate to awards of 531 shares and the payment of 721 
shares to a director that resigned in January 2008. The cost of the shares held by the Trust is 
deducted from additional paid in capital on the consolidated balance sheets. The charge to 
expense for the annual contribution was $12,000 and $14,000 for 2009 and 2008, respectively.  
Contribution expense was adjusted to reflect the fair value of the shares to the current market 
price for the years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008. Contribution expense was decreased by 
$14,000 for the year ended March 31, 2009 but was increased by $22,000 for the year ended 
March 31, 2008. 

As part of the conversion in 1997, the Company established an ESOP covering substantially all 
employees of the Company.  The ESOP acquired 68,770 shares of Company common stock at 
$10 per share in the conversion with funds provided by a loan from the Company.  Accordingly, 
$688,000 of common stock acquired by the ESOP was shown as a reduction of stockholders’ 
equity.  Shares are released to participants proportionately as the loan is repaid.  Dividends on 
allocated shares are recorded as dividends and charged to retained earnings.  Dividends on 
unallocated shares are used to repay the loan and are treated as compensation expense.  
Compensation expense is recorded equal to the fair value of the stock when contributions, 
which are determined annually, at December 31, by the Board of Directors of the Company, are 
made to the ESOP. 

 2009 2008 
   
Total allocated ESOP shares   64,708   63,694

 

The Company adopted with stockholders approval the Recognition and Retention Plan (the 
RRP) on July 29, 1998.  The plan provides for the granting of shares of common stock to the 
eligible directors, officers, and employees.  The RRP was approved for 42,981 shares of 
common stock of the Company.  The RRP has granted 35,750 shares to existing directors, 
officers, and employees with 7,231 available for future grants.  The original granted shares 
vested in five equal annual installments, with the first installment vesting immediately upon the 
plan approval and the last vesting on July 29, 2002.  The vesting of the granted shares can be 
accelerated based on certain plan provisions.  Directors, officers, and employees granted shares 
retain voting rights and, if dividends are paid, dividends during the vesting period.  The RRP 
will continue in effect for a term of ten years unless otherwise terminated.  The Company’s 
stock price was $17.25 on the RRP approval date.  The Company repurchased 42,981 shares of 
its common stock during the year ended March 31, 1999 at a cost of $746,000.  There was no 
expense recognized under the RRP plan for the years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, 
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respectively.  The RRP expired July 29, 2008 and the unallocated 7,231 shares were transferred 
to Treasury Stock at that time. 

 

Note 16: Stock Option Plan 

The Company has a fixed option plan under which the Company may grant options that vest 
over five (5) years to selected employees for up to 103,155 shares of common stock.  The 
exercise price of each option is intended to equal the fair value of the Company's stock on the 
date of grant.  An option's maximum term is ten (10) years. 

With all options being exercised during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 and no 
outstanding options remaining, there was no aggregate intrinsic value of stock options 
outstanding and exercisable at March 31, 2009.  The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options 
exercised during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 was $166,000.  

A summary of the status of the plan at March 31, 2009 and 2008, and changes during the years 
then ended is presented below: 

 2009 2008 

 Shares 

Weighted-
Average 

Exercise Price Shares 

Weighted-
Average 

Exercise Price
     

Outstanding, beginning 
of year   10,190  $ 17.25   18,505  $ 17.25

Exercised   10,190  $ 17.25   8,315  $ 17.25
 
Outstanding, end of year   —  $                  —   10,190 $              17.25
 
Options exercisable, end 

of year   —  $                  —   10,190   $   17.25
 

.  
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Note 17:  Earnings Per Share 

Earnings per share (EPS) were computed as follows: 

 Year Ended March 31, 2009 

 Income 

Weighted-
Average 
Shares 

Per Share 
Amount 

 (In thousands)   
    
Net income  $ 791   431,024   
 
Basic earnings per share 

Income available to common 
stockholders  $ 1.84 

 
Effect of dilutive securities 

Stock options   —
Incentive shares   —   16,221
 

Diluted earnings per share 
Income available to common 

stockholders and assumed 
conversions  $ 791   447,245  $ 1.77

 
 

 Year Ended March 31, 2008 

 Income 

Weighted-
Average 
Shares 

Per Share 
Amount 

 (In thousands)   
  
Net income  $ 971   450,344
 
Basic earnings per share 

Income available to common 
stockholders  $ 2.16

 
Effect of dilutive securities 

Stock options   4,943
Incentive shares   —   16,222

 
Diluted earnings per share 

Income available to common 
stockholders and assumed 
conversions  $ 971   471,509  $ 2.06
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Note 18: Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Effective April1, 2008, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 157 (SFAS 157), Fair Value Measurements. SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a 
framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. 
SFAS 157 has been applied prospectively as of the beginning of the period.  

SFAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. SFAS 157 also establishes a fair value hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize the 
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair 
value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:  

  Level 1     Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

     

  Level 2    Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not
active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated 
by observable market data for substantially the full term of the
assets or liabilities 

     

  Level 3    Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market
activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or
liabilities 

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value 
on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying balance sheets, as well as the general 
classification of such assets pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.  

Available-for-Sale Securities  

The fair value of available-for-sale securities are determined by various valuation 
methodologies. Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are 
classified within Level 1. The Company has no Level 1 securities. If quoted market prices are 
not available, then fair values are estimated using pricing models or quoted prices of securities 
with similar characteristics. Level 2 securities include obligations of U.S. government 
corporations and agencies, obligations of states and political subdivisions, mortgage-backed 
securities, and collateralized mortgage obligations. In certain cases where Level 1 or Level 2 
inputs are not available, securities are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy.  The Company 
has no Level 3 available-for-sale securities.  
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The following table presents the Company’s assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring 
basis and the level within the FAS 157 hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall as of 
March 31, 2009 (in thousands):  

 
   Carrying value at March 31, 2009  

Description  Fair Value   

Quoted 
Prices in 
Active 

Markets for 
Identical 

Assets 
(Level 1)   

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2)     

Significant 
Unobservable

Inputs 
(Level 3)  

                     

Available-for-sale securities  $ 55,925  $ —   $ 55,925    $ — 
 

The Company may be required, from time to time, to measure certain other financial assets and 
liabilities on a nonrecurring basis. These adjustments to fair value usually result from 
application of lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write-downs of individual assets. For 
assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis that were still held on the balance sheet at 
March 31, 2009, the following table provides the level of valuation assumptions used to 
determine each adjustment and the fair value of the assets at March 31, 2009 (in thousands).  

Impaired Loans  

Loans for which it is probable that the Company will not collect all principal and interest due 
according to contractual terms are measured for impairment in accordance with the provisions 
of Financial Accounting Standard No. 114 (“FAS 114”) “Accounting by Creditors for 
Impairment of a Loan.” Allowable methods for estimating fair value include using the fair value 
of the collateral or collateral dependent loans or, where a loan is determined not to be collateral 
dependent, using the discounted cash flow method.  

If the impaired loan is identified as collateral dependent, then the fair value method of 
measuring the amount of the impairment is utilized. This method requires reviewing an 
independent appraisal of the collateral and applying a discount factor to the value based on 
management’s estimation process.  

Impaired loans are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.  

Mortgage Servicing Rights 

The fair value used to determine the valuation allowance is estimated using discounted cash 
flow models.  Due to the nature of the valuation inputs, mortgage servicing rights are classified 
within Level 3 of the hierarchy.
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The following table presents the fair value measurement of assets measured at fair value on a 
nonrecurring basis and the level within the FAS 157 fair value hierarchy in which the fair value 
measurements fall at March 31, 2009: 

            Carrying value at March 31, 2009  
            Quoted Prices in    Significant        
            Active Markets     Other     Significant  
            for Identical     Observable     Unobservable  
            Assets     Inputs     Inputs  
 Description   Fair Value     (Level 1)     (Level 2)     (Level 3)  
                                
Impaired loans       $ 154  $ —   $ —   $ 154 
Mortgage 
 servicing rights   243   —    —    243 

 

The following methods were used to estimate fair values of the Company’s financial 
instruments.  The fair values of certain of these instruments were calculated by discounting 
expected cash flows, which involves significant judgments by management and uncertainties.  
Fair value is the estimated amount at which financial assets or liabilities could be exchanged in 
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.  Because 
no market exists for certain of these financial instruments and because management does not 
intend to sell these financial instruments, the Company does not know whether the fair values 
shown below represent values at which the respective financial instruments could be sold 
individually or in the aggregate. 

Carrying amount is the estimated fair value for cash and cash equivalents, interest-bearing 
deposits, federal funds sold, Federal Reserve and Federal Home Loan Bank stocks, accrued 
interest receivable and payable, and advances from borrowers for taxes and insurance.  Security 
fair values equal quoted market prices, if available.  If quoted market prices are not available, 
fair value is estimated based on quoted market prices of similar securities.  The fair value of 
loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar 
loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining 
maturities.  Loans with similar characteristics were aggregated for purposes of the calculations.  
On demand deposits, savings accounts, NOW accounts, and certain money market deposits the 
carrying amount approximates fair value.  The fair value of fixed-maturity time deposits is 
estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies the rates currently offered for 
deposits of similar remaining maturities. On other borrowings, rates currently available to the 
Company for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities are used to estimate the fair 
value of existing debt. 

The fair value of commitments to originate loans is estimated using the fees currently charged 
to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and 
the present creditworthiness of the counterparties.  For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value 
also considers the difference between current levels of interest rates and the committed rates.  
The fair value of forward sale commitments is estimated based on current market prices for 
loans of similar terms and credit quality.  The fair values of letters of credit and lines of credit 
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are based on fees currently charged for similar agreements or on the estimated cost to terminate 
or otherwise settle the obligations with the counterparties at the reporting date. 

 

                         
   March 31, 2009   March 31, 2008  
   Carrying        Carrying        
   Amount   Fair Value   Amount     Fair Value  
   (In thousands) 
Financial assets                        

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 5,424  $ 5,424  $ 1,901    $ 1,901 
Interest-bearing deposits   713   713   264      264 
Federal funds sold   7,572   7,572   17,363      17,363 
Available-for-sale securities  55,925  55,925  31,339   31,339
Loans held for sale   392   392   101      101 
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses   86,365   87,092   76,145      76,810 
Federal Reserve and Federal Home Loan 

Bank stock   811   811   808      808 
Interest receivable   824   824   758      758 

                         
Financial liabilities                        

Deposits   140,088   135,883   103,898      105,472 
Other borrowings   9,914   9,927   16,253      16,283 
Advances from borrowers for taxes and 

insurance   166   166   149      149 
Interest payable   330   330   262      262 

                         
Unrecognized financial instruments  

(net of contract amount)                        
Commitments to originate loans   —   —   —      — 
Letters of credit   —   —   —      — 
Lines of credit   —   —   —      — 

 

Note 19:   Significant Estimates and Concentrations 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require disclosure of 
certain significant estimates and current vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations.  Estimates 
related to the allowance for loan losses, foreclosed assets held for sale, loan servicing rights, and 
Federal Home Loan Bank stock impairment are reflected in Note 1. Current vulnerabilities due 
to certain concentrations of credit risk are described in Note 20.  Disclosures due to current 
economic conditions are described below. 
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The current economic environment presents financial institutions with unprecedented 
circumstances and challenges which in some cases resulted in large declines in the fair values of 
investments and other assets, constraints on liquidity and significant credit quality problems 
including severe volatility in the valuation of real estate and other collateral supporting loans.  
The financial statements have been prepared using values and information currently available to 
the Company. 

Given the volatility of current economic conditions, the values of assets and liabilities recorded 
in the financial statements could change rapidly, resulting in material future adjustments in asset 
values, the allowance for loan losses, and capital that could negatively impact the Company’s 
ability to meet regulatory capital requirements and maintain sufficient liquidity. 

 
Note 20:    Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk 

Standby Letters of Credit 

In the normal course of business, the Company issues various financial standby, performance 
standby, and commercial letters of credit for its customers.  As consideration for the letters of 
credit, the institution charges letter of credit fees based on the face amount of the letters and the 
creditworthiness of the counterparties.  These letters of credit are stand-alone agreements and 
are unrelated to any obligation the depositor has to the Company. 

Standby letters of credit are irrevocable conditional commitments issued by the Company to 
guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party.  Financial standby letters of credit are 
primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements, including commercial 
paper, bond financing, and similar transactions.  Performance standby letters of credit are issued 
to guarantee performance of certain customers under non-financial contractual obligations.  The 
credit risk involved in issuing standby letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in 
extending loans to customers. 

The Company had total outstanding standby letters of credit amounting to $383,000 and 
$366,000 at March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, with terms ranging from 12 to 18 months.  
At March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Bank’s deferred revenue under standby letters of credit 
agreements was nominal. 

Lines of Credit and Commitments to Fund Loans 

Lines of credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any 
condition established in the contract.  Lines of credit generally have fixed expiration dates.  
Since a portion of the line may expire without being drawn upon, the total unused lines do not 
necessarily represent future cash requirements.  Each customer’s creditworthiness is evaluated 
on a case-by-case basis.  The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary, is based on 
management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty.  Collateral held varies but may include 
accounts receivable; inventory; property, plant, and equipment; commercial real estate; and 
residential real estate.  Management uses the same credit policies in granting lines of credit as it 
does for on-balance-sheet instruments. 

Current Economic Conditions 
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At March 31, 2009, the Company had granted unused lines of credit to borrowers aggregating 
approximately $14,088,000 and $6,831,000 for commercial lines and open-end consumer lines, 
respectively.  At March 31, 2008, unused lines of credit to borrowers aggregated approximately 
$10,337,000 for commercial lines and $5,960,000 for open-end consumer lines. 

 Loans committed to but not yet funded as of March 31, 2009 and 2008 amounted to $3,724,000 
and $2,963,000, respectively.  As of March 31, 2009 and 2008, $2,861,000 and $1,287,000, 
respectively, were at a fixed rate and scheduled to be sold in the secondary market.   

 

Note 21:   Subsequent Events 

On May 22, 2009, the FDIC adopted a final rule imposing a 5 basis point special assessment on 
each insured depository institution's assets minus Tier 1 capital as of June 30, 2009. The amount 
of the special assessment for any institution will not exceed 10 basis points times the 
institution's assessment base for the second quarter 2009. The special assessment will be 
collected on September 30, 2009. An additional special assessment of up to 5 basis points later 
in 2009 is probable, but the amount is uncertain. The additional amount that would be imposed 
on the Company, as a result of the June 30, 2009 final rule, would be approximately $81,300.  
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Note 22:   Condensed Financial Information (Parent Company Only) 

Presented below is condensed financial information as to financial position, results of 
operations, and cash flows of the Company: 

 

Condensed Balance Sheets 
 March 31, 
 2009 2008 

 (In Thousands) 
Assets   

Cash and due from banks  $ 146  $ 689
 

Investment in common stock of subsidiaries   12,663   11,750
Other assets   119   125
 

Total assets  $ 12,928  $ 12,564
 

Liabilities 
Other liabilities  $ 621  $ 688
 

Stockholders' Equity   12,307   11,876
 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity  $ 12,928  $ 12,564
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Condensed Statements of Income 
 

 Year Ended March 31, 
 2009 2008 

 (In Thousands) 
Income   

Dividends from subsidiaries  $ 600  $ 998
Other income   3   7
 

Total income   603   1,005
 

Expenses 
Other expenses   366   346
 

Income Before Income Tax and Equity in Undistributed Income 
of Subsidiary   237   659

 
Income Tax Benefit   (176)   (127)
 
Income Before Equity in Undistributed Income of Subsidiary   413   786
 
Equity in Undistributed Income of Subsidiary   378   185
 
Net Income  $ 791  $ 971
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 
 

 Year Ended March 31, 
 2009 2008 
 (In Thousands) 

Operating Activities   
Net income  $ 791  $ 971
Items not requiring (providing) cash 

Deferred income taxes   4   (8)
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary   (378)   (185)
Compensation related to incentive plans   208   130

Changes in 
Other assets   2   8
Other liabilities    (67)   93

 
Net cash provided by operating activities   560   1,009

 
Financing Activities 

Dividends paid   (345)   (316)
Purchase of incentive plan shares   (19)   (24)
Proceeds received from exercise of options                          150                          69 
Purchase of treasury shares                 (889)                     (1,290)

 
Net cash used in financing activities   (1,103)   (1,561)

 
Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents   (543)   (552)
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year   689   1,241
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year  $ 146  $ 689
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FIRST ROBINSON FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 

STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION 

ANNUAL MEETING 

The annual meeting of stockholders will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, July 23, 2009, at the 
Company’s office located at 501 East Main Street, Robinson, Illinois. 

 
STOCK LISTING 

The Company’s stock is traded on the over-the-counter market with quotations available 
through the OTC Electronic Bulletin Board under the symbol “FRFC.” 
 
PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK 
 

The following table sets forth the high and low bid prices of the Company’s Common Stock 
for the periods indicated.  The information set forth in the table below was provided by the OTC 
Electronic Bulletin Board.  The information reflects interdealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-
down or commission and may not represent actual transactions. 

 
 Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2008 
 High Low Dividends High Low Dividends 
       
First Quarter $36.50 $34.45 $0.75 $41.05 $31.00 $0.65 
Second Quarter 36.75 34.90 - 33.99 32.02 - 
Third Quarter 36.00 33.25 - 33.75 33.15 - 
Fourth Quarter 35.00 33.75 - 36.75 33.20 - 

 
The Company declared and paid a dividend of $0.75 per share in fiscal 2009.  Dividend 

payment decisions are made with consideration of a variety of factors including earnings, financial 
condition, market considerations and regulatory restrictions.  Restrictions on dividend payments are 
described in Note 13 of the Notes to Financial Statements included in this Annual Report.   
 

As of June 10, 2009, the Company had approximately 450 registered stockholders of record 
and 435,148 outstanding shares of Common Stock.   
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SHAREHOLDERS AND GENERAL INQUIRIES TRANSFER AGENT 

Rick L. Catt 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
First Robinson Financial Corporation 
501 East Main Street 
Robinson, Illinois 62454 
(618) 544-8621 

 
 
Register and Transfer Company 
10 Commerce Drive 
Cranford, New Jersey 07016 
(908) 272-8511 

 

ANNUAL AND OTHER REPORTS 

The Company is required to file an Annual Report on Form 10-K for its fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2009, with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  Copies of the Annual Report on 
Form 10-K and the Company’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-QSB may be obtained without charge 
by contacting: 

Rick L. Catt 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
First Robinson Financial Corporation 
501 East Main Street 
Robinson, Illinois 62454 
(618) 544-8621 
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FIRST ROBINSON FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY CORPORATE 
INFORMATION 

COMPANY AND BANK ADDRESS  

501 East Main Street 
Robinson, Illinois 62454 
www.frsb.net 

Telephone: (618) 544-8621 
Fax:  (618) 544-7506 

  

DIRECTORS OF THE BOARD  

SCOTT F. PULLIAM 
Chairman of the Board 
Public Accountant 
Robinson, Illinois 
 

ROBIN E. GUYER 
President - Agricultural Services Company 
Hutsonville, Illinois 

STEVEN E. NEELEY 
Owner - Industrial Equipment Company 
Robinson, Illinois 
 

J. DOUGLAS GOODWINE 
Funeral Director 
Robinson, Illinois 

WILLIAM K. THOMAS 
Attorney 
Robinson, Illinois 

RICK L. CATT 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
First Robinson Financial Corporation 
Robinson, Illinois  

  

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS  

RICK L. CATT 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
 

W.E. HOLT 
Vice President and Senior Loan Officer 

LESLIE TROTTER, III 
Vice President 

JAMIE E. McREYNOLDS 
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and 
Secretary 

WILLIAM D. SANDIFORD 
Vice President 

 

  

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS SPECIAL COUNSEL 

BKD, LLP 
501 N. Broadway 
Suite 600 
St. Louis, MO  63102-2102 

Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP 
1025 Thomas Jefferson Street, N.W. 
East Lobby, Suite 700 
Washington, D.C.  20007-5201 
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